
 
Board of Directors Agenda Special Meeting

Wednesday, March 4, 2020 at 1:00 PM
Valley Sanitary District Board Room, 45-500 Van Buren Street

Page

1. CALL TO ORDER

1.1. Roll Call

1.2. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
This is the time set aside for public comment on any item not appearing on the 
agenda. Please notify the Secretary in advance of the meeting if you wish to speak 
on a non-hearing item.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR
Consent calendar items are expected to be routine and noncontroversial, to be 
acted upon by the Board of Directors at one time, without discussion. If any Board 
member requests that an item be removed from the consent calendar, it will be 
removed so that it may be acted upon separately.

3.1. Approve February 11, 2020 Regular Meeting and February 26, 
2020 Special Meeting Minutes
3.1 11 FEB 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf

3.1 26 Feb 2020 Special Meeting Minutes.pdf

3 - 8

4. NON-HEARING ITEMS

4.1. Set Public Hearing Date to Adopt Increase in Sewer Use Fee
4.1 Staff Report Prop 218 Public Hearing Date.pdf

4.1 Attachment A NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON RATES 2020.pdf

9 - 10

Page 1 of 58

/document/5a40edd1-4d70-4812-b456-74eafee8f8ab
/document/bb266769-bfb0-48bd-8d92-3368f652f37b
/document/af146015-ee2e-45f1-8597-614b9c18c38b
/document/b8588674-5e50-4de1-8c8f-cbf189b24df8


4.2. Proposed Rate Increase and Proposition 218 Notice
4.2 Staff Report Prop 218 Rate Increase and Notice.pdf

4.2 Attachment A High Tech Estimate # 35794.pdf

4.2 Attachment B Prop 218 Card.pdf

4.2 Attachment C vsd_svc_chgs_rpt_final.pdf

11 - 45

4.3. Pollution Liability Coverage - Desert Cornerstone Insurance 
Service, Inc.
4.3 Staff Report Pollution Liability Coverage.pdf

4.3 Attachment A Environmental Pollution Proposal.pdf

46 - 53

4.4. Award Contract - Owner's Representative to Valley Sanitary 
District for the Influent pump Station Rehabilitation to 
Stantec, Inc.
4.4 Staff Report Award of Contract - Stantec Owner's Rep Amendment 
01.pdf

4.4 Attachment A Amendment 1_VSD_IPS_2020_0220.pdf

54 - 58

5. DIRECTOR'S ITEMS
Director’s items not listed are for discussion only; no action will be taken without an 
urgency vote pursuant to State law.

6. ADJOURNMENT

Pursuant to the Brown Act, items may not be added to this agenda unless the Secretary to the 
Board has at least 72 hours advance notice prior to the time and date posted on this notice.

Page 2 of 58

/document/c338c984-c45a-4121-805d-d3fada085f32
/document/5cd7355f-9d98-46f9-8501-2dd48a600e8f
/document/9f606d67-ea47-493f-be96-9bbc108c8fd2
/document/6c9d69f6-8fc3-4af6-8e8d-a6688c77ea99
/document/5dda70bc-89e5-46d3-b31d-d15e1dba9fe7
/document/58de00fb-649b-4e40-a8b5-9c56e3cdb8d2
/document/13201ae2-d1b4-4369-98e8-315a7b681c2a
/document/13201ae2-d1b4-4369-98e8-315a7b681c2a
/document/9dcc39a8-fbcc-40af-a61d-fd5545021729


UNOFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

 VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

February 11, 2020 
 

A regular Board Meeting of the Governing Board of Valley Sanitary District (VSD) was 
held at the District offices, 45-500 Van Buren Street, Indio, California, on Tuesday, 
February 11, 2020. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

President Mike Duran called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.   
 
1.1 Roll Call   
 

  Directors Present:  
 Mike Duran, William Teague, Dennis Coleman, Debra Canero, Scott Sear 

 
Staff Present:   
Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager, Holly Gould, Joanne Padgham, Ron 
Buchwald, Ian Wilson, Anna Bell, Ryan Williams, Ivan Monroy, Tito Moreno, 
Brian Sprueill, Ed Luna, Lorraine Shinnette 

 
Guests:   
Robert Hargreaves, Best Best & Krieger 

 
1.2 Pledge of Allegiance 
     
1.3 February Employee Anniversaries 

• Tito Moreno  15 years 

• Kenny Kepley  14 Years 

• Brian Sprueill  8 years  
______________________________________________________________________ 
The Board congratulated Tito Moreno, Kenny Kepley, and Brian Sprueill on their years 
of service and thanked them for their continued hard work and dedication.  They also 
congratulated Ian and the entire staff on receiving the Plant of the Year Award for 
medium sized plant from CWEA/CORBS. Anna Bell was congratulated on receiving the 
CWEA/CORBS Laboratory Person of the Year Award. Both recipients will now move on 
to the state level. The Board also welcomed the District’s new staff, Lorraine Shinnette, 
Laboratory Technician, and Eduardo Luna, Maintenance Technician. 
 
4.1 Presentation from Ivan Monroy, Environmental Compliance Technician, on the 
 P3S Conference 
______________________________________________________________________ 
To accommodate staff this item was moved up on the agenda. Ivan Monroy, 
Environmental Compliance Technician gave a report of the P3S Conference he 
attended in Long Beach. The conference focused on pretreatment pollution prevention 
and stormwater. Ivan thanked the Board for believing in training. He stated the 
conference gave him the opportunity to learn from US EPA instructors with more than 

Page 3 of 58



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes February 11, 2020                                      2                            Approved: 

thirty (30) years’ experience. It also gave him the opportunity to network with others in 
his field and share knowledge.  Ivan shared that the District has developed a proactive 
pretreatment program, working closely with the Collections Department, Laboratory 
Department and Operations. Director Teague stated that the Board fully supports 
training and the importance of continuing to gain knowledge. 
 
4.6 Discussion of Valley Sanitary District’s Front Lawn and Maintenance 
______________________________________________________________________ 
To accommodate staff this item was moved up on the agenda. Ian Wilson gave the 
Board a brief history of the front lawn. He explained that during the drought a few years 
ago, it was decided to turn off the sprinklers and not re-seed to conserve water. 
Combined with that and staffing issues within the maintenance department it was 
something that has not been revisited. There has been some discussion of what to do 
with that space and whether to contract out for landscaping services. President Duran 
suggested that the General Manager and staff come up with an idea of how to utilize 
that space. Vice President Sear suggested reaching out to the schools to see if there 
are any agriculture clubs or programs that could help. Director Coleman suggested 
looking into rebates for conservation programs. 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This is the time set aside for public comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  
Please notify the Secretary in advance of the meeting if you wish to speak on a non-
hearing item. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
None. 
 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
3.1 Approve January 28, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
3.2  Approve Warrants for January 23, 2020 to February 5, 2020 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION: Director Teague made a motion to approve the consent calendar as 

presented.  Director Coleman seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
by the following vote: 5 ayes   
MINUTE ORDER NO.  2020-2982 

 
4. NON-HEARING ITEMS 
 
4.2 Continuing Disclosure Annual Reports for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019  
______________________________________________________________________ 
Joanne Padgham presented the reports to the Board. Pursuant to the Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate, the annual reports are due no later than February 15 each year. 
The reports show that the District is very financially healthy. 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 58



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes February 11, 2020                                      3                            Approved: 

ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION:  Director Teague made a motion to receive and file the Continuing  
   Disclosure Annual Reports for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019.  
   Director Coleman seconded the motion. Motion carried by   
   the following roll call vote:   

 AYES:  Canero, Coleman, Duran, Sear, Teague 
 NOES: None 
 ABSENT: None 

      ABSTAIN: None 
MINUTE ORDER NO.  2020-2083 

 
4.3 Award of Contract to Denali Water Solutions for Biosolids Removal, Hauling and 
 Disposal 
______________________________________________________________________ 
The District’s current biosolids removal, hauling and disposal contract expired in 
October 2019. The bid for the new five-year contract is based on 1000 tons of Class A 
biosolids. The actual cost will vary each year based on the amount disposed and the 
quality of the biosolids. After reviewing the three bid packages for completeness, staff 
believes the lowest responsible bidder is Denali Water Solutions, LLC.  Denali Water 
Solutions has been the biosolids hauler contractor for VSD for the past 10 years.  They 
have performed this service to District standards and meet our expectations. 
 
ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION:  Secretary Canero made a motion to award the biosolids removal,  
   hauling and disposing service contract to Denali Water Solutions  
   and authorize the General Manager to execute a construction  
   contract based on the rates provided on their bid sheet.  Director  
   Teague seconded the motion. Motion carried by the following roll  
   call vote:   

 AYES:  Canero, Coleman, Duran, Sear, Teague 
 NOES: None 
 ABSENT: None 

      ABSTAIN: None 
MINUTE ORDER NO.  2020-2084 
 

4.4 Nominate Representative to CSDA Board of Directors – Seat B 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Vice President Sear nominated Director Dennis Coleman as a candidate for the 
California Special District Association Board of Directors Vacancy – Seat B Southern 
Network. Secretary Canero seconded the nomination. 
 
ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION:  Vice President Sear made a motion to nominate Director Dennis  
   Coleman as a candidate for the California Special District   
   Association Board of Directors Vacancy – Seat B Southern   
   Network.  Secretary Canero seconded the motion. Motion carried  
   by the following roll call vote:   

 AYES:  Canero, Coleman, Duran, Sear, Teague 
 NOES: None 

Page 5 of 58



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes February 11, 2020                                      4                            Approved: 

 ABSENT: None 
      ABSTAIN: None 

MINUTE ORDER NO.  2020-2085 
 

4.5 Reschedule the Regular Board Meeting of February 25, 2020 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Due to the attendance of the directors at the California Association of Sanitation 
Agencies (CASA) DC Forum in Washington D.C. February 24-26, 2020, the February 
25, 2020 Regular Board Meeting will be rescheduled for Wednesday, March 4, 2020 at 
1:00 p.m. 
 
ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION:  Director Teague made a motion to reschedule the February 25,  
   2020 Regular Board Meeting for March 4, 2020. Vice President  
   Sear seconded the motion. Motion carried by the following roll  
   call vote:   

 AYES:  Canero, Coleman, Duran, Sear, Teague 
 NOES: None 
 ABSENT: None 

      ABSTAIN: None 
MINUTE ORDER NO.  2020-2086 
 

4.7 Staff Updates 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Ms. Marshall wanted to clarify with the Board the mix up of the tuition reimbursement for 
the General Manager. She stated her intention of following her contract and district 
policies.  
 
5. DIRECTOR’S ITEMS 
Director’s items not listed are for discussion only; no action will be taken without an 
urgency vote pursuant to State law. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
None. 
 
6. CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION  
 
6.1 Pursuant to Government Code Paragraph (1) of Subdivision (d) of Section 
 54956.9 Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation  
 Valley Sanitary District v. One Stop Shoppe 
 
6.2 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.5 Public Employee Performance 
 Evaluation - Title: General Manager 
______________________________________________________________________ 
The board adjourned to closed session at 1:48 p.m. 
 
7. CONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
______________________________________________________________________ 
The Board reconvened to open session at 2:52 p.m. President Duran stated that there 
was nothing to report. 

Page 6 of 58



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes February 11, 2020                                      5                            Approved: 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 2:52 
p.m. The next special board meeting will be held March 4, 2020. 
 
 
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
        Holly Gould, Clerk of the Board 
        Valley Sanitary District 

Page 7 of 58



UNOFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED 

VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

February 26, 2020 
 

A regular Board Meeting of the Governing Board of Valley Sanitary District (VSD) was 
held at 112 Hart Senate Office Building and the Member’s Dining Room, U.S. Capital 
Building, Washington D.C. on Wednesday, February 26, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. PST. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
1.1 Roll Call 
 
 Directors Present: 
 Dennis Coleman, Debra Canero, Scott Sear 
 
 Staff Present: 
 Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 
 
2. NON-HEARING ITEMS 
 
2.1 Meeting with Senator Kamala Harris’ Staff 
 112 Hart Senate Office Building, Washington D.C. 
 9:00-9:15 a.m. PST 
 
2.2 Lunch with Former Congressman Bill Lowery 
 Member’s Dining Room, U.S. Capital Building, Washington D.C. 
 9:30-10:30 a.m. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
The Directors met with a representative from Senator Kamala Harris’ office and with 
former Congressman Bill Lowery to discuss key issues identified by the California 
Association of Sanitary Agencies (CASA). 
 
3. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 10:30 a.m. 
PST. The next special board meeting will be held March 4, 2020. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       Holly Gould, Clerk of the Board 
       Valley Sanitary District 

 

Page 8 of 58



  
Valley Sanitary District 

Board of Directors Meeting 
March 4, 2020 

 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 
 
FROM: Joanne Padgham, Administration & Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Set Public Hearing Date to Adopt Increase in Sewer Use Fee 
  

☒Board Action ☐New Budget Approval ☐Contract Award 

☐Board Information ☐Existing FY Approved Budget ☐Closed Session 

 
Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is for the Board to set a public hearing date of May 12, 2020 
to consider the increase in the Sewer Use Fee for fiscal Year 2020/2021 and approve 
the Public Hearing Notice for publishing in the Desert Sun. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
None at this time. 
 
Background 
In accordance with California Proposition 218, notice is to be sent to the owners of 
record and/or tenants via U.S. Mail at least 45 days before the Public Hearing in order 
to consider an increase to the Sewer Use rate.  Additionally, notice of the Public 
Hearing will be advertised in the Desert Sun, a newspaper of general circulation, on 
March 22, 2020 and March 29, 2020. 
 
Recommendation 
To approve the Public Hearing Notice for publishing in the Desert Sun. 
 
Attachments 
Attachment A: Public Hearing Notice 
  

Page 9 of 58



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED  

NEW RATE FOR VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

                           SEWER SERVICES 

 

 

On Tuesday, May 12, 2020, the Valley Sanitary District Board of Directors will hold a 

public hearing to consider the proposed rate described in the Proposition 218 Notice 

mailed to property owners of record within the District’s service area. 

 

The hearing will begin at 1:00 p.m. in the Valley Sanitary District Boardroom located at 

45-500 Van Buren Street, Indio, CA  92201. 

 

How to protest the proposed new rate: 

 

Under Proposition 218, the property owner of record or a tenant may submit a written 

protest against the proposed rate increase to the District at or before the time set for the 

public hearing.  

 

Protests should contain the following information: (1) a description of the property, such 

as the assessor’s parcel number; (2) whether you are the property owner of record or a 

tenant; and (3) the parcel owner’s or tenant’s signature.  One written protest per parcel 

will be counted.  

 

Please mail written protests to:  

 

Board of Directors 

  Valley Sanitary District 

  45-500 Van Buren Street 

  Indio, CA   92201 

 

Or you can deliver your protest to the Clerk of the Board at the same address, Monday – 

Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  Written protests must be received 

by Valley Sanitary District no later than 1:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 12, 2020.  

Electronically submitted protests will not be accepted.  

 

The Board of Directors will consider all protests against the proposed increase.  If written 

protests against the proposed increase are presented by the majority of property owners, 

the Board of Directors will not impose the increase.  If there is no majority protest, the 

District Board of Directors may vote to adopt the proposed rate for sewer services, which 

will become effective as of July 1, 2020. 

 

Page 10 of 58



  
Valley Sanitary District 

Board of Directors Meeting 
March 4, 2020 

 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 
 
FROM: Joanne Padgham, Administration & Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Rate Increase and Proposition 218 Notice 
  

☒Board Action ☐New Budget Approval ☐Contract Award 

☐Board Information ☐Existing FY Approved Budget ☐Closed Session 

 
Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is for the Board to approve the proposed rate increase and 
authorize staff to mail the Proposition 218 Notice for an estimated total cost of $14,627. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
The expenditure is in the approved FY 2019/2020 budget. 
 
The estimated cost for printing and mailing approximately 24,650 notices is $14,627.  
This is a sole source procurement due to High Tech Mailing Services past performance 
and reliability. 
 
Background 
The District provides wastewater service to its customers, and continually strives to 
provide excellent service while maximizing cost reductions and better utilization of its 
assets.  The District must also be fiscally responsible to ensure financial stability in the 
years to come.  To this end, the District engaged an independent consultant to perform 
a cost of service analysis and rate study for its wastewater service charges.  Based 
upon the rate study, the District anticipates there will be future increases in the costs of 
operating and maintaining the wastewater systems.  The proposed wastewater rate 
increases are necessary to enable the District to:  (1) maintain the operational and 
financial stability of the District, including keeping pace with inflation and other cost 
increases including wastewater treatment costs; (2) comply with State and Federal 
regulations governing the treatment, disposal, and reuse of wastewater; (3) fund capital 
infrastructure improvements needed to repair and update the District’s aging 
wastewater system; and (4) avoid operational deficits and depletion of reserves.   
 

Page 11 of 58



In accordance with California Proposition 218, notice is to be sent to the record owners 
and/or tenants via U.S. Mail at least 45 days before the Public Hearing in order to 
consider an increase to the Sewer Use rate.  Additionally, notice of the Public Hearing 
will be advertised in the Desert Sun, a newspaper of general circulation, on March 22, 
2020 and March 29, 2020. 
 
The Proposition 218 notice has been reviewed by legal counsel. 
 
Recommendation 
To approve the proposed rate increase and authorize staff to mail the Proposition 218 
notice for an estimated total cost of $14,627. 
 
Attachments 
Attachment A: Quote from High Tech Mailing Services 
Attachment B:   Proposition 218 Notice 
Attachment C: Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges May 2019   
  

Page 12 of 58



Estimate

Date

2/12/2020

Estimate #

35794

Name / Address

VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
ATTN: ACCOUNTING
45500 VAN BUREN
INDIO CA 92201

High Tech Mailing Services

PO Box 249
Palm Desert, CA 92261
760-779-0460

P.O. No. Project

Thank you for your business.

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

                     8.5"X8.5" CARD MAILING

CREATE COMPUTER MAILING LIST FROM E-MAIL
PROVIDED BY CLIENT.  ADD ZIP+4 AND DELIVERY POINT
BARCODES FOR MAXIMUM POSTAL DISCOUNTS

3 40.00 120.00

"NCOA" CHARGE (NATIONAL CHANGE OF ADDRESSES)
REQUIREMENT BY THE POST OFFICE

1 30.00 30.00

ECRWSS SORT 1 1,250.00 1,250.00

PRINT 24,000 8.5X8.5 CARDS TO 100# GLOSS COVER 4/4
(COLOR BOTH SIDES) WITH BLEED

1 2,203.00 2,203.00

IMPRINT ADDRESSES DIRECTLY ON YOUR MAIL PIECE,
SORT, BATCH, BUNDLE, PREPARE POSTAL REPORTS

23,513 0.045 1,058.09

FIX PERMIT FOR INTERNATIONAL ADDRESSES 1,137 0.02 22.74

VERIFY MAILING AT PALM DESERT POST OFFICE AND
DROP SHIP TO SCF SAN BERNARDINO FOR MAXIMUM
POSTAGE SAVINGS

1 160.00 160.00

POSTAGE ESTIMATE FOR PRESORTED STANDARD
MAILING, AUTOMATION BARCODED FLAT SIZE RATES

23,513 0.30 7,053.90

1ST CLASS POSTAGE TO CANADA 1,137 2.40 2,728.80

$14,626.53

Page 13 of 58



35 

  

  

  

VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

45-500 VAN BUREN STREET 

INDIO, CA 92201 

WWW.VALLEY-SANITARY.ORG 

How to Voice Your Opinion: 

 

Under Proposition 218, the property owner of record or a tenant may 

submit a written protest against the proposed rate increase to the 

District at or before the time set for the public hearing. Protests should 

contain the following information: (1) a description of the property, such 

as the assessor’s parcel number; (2) whether you are the property owner 

of record or a tenant; and (3) the parcel owner’s or tenant’s signature.  

One (1) written protest per parcel will be counted.  

  

Please mail written protests to:  

  

Board of Directors 

 Valley Sanitary District 

 45-500 Van Buren Street 

 Indio, CA   92201 

  

Or you can deliver your protest to the Clerk of the Board at the same 

address, Monday – Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  

Written protests delivered in person must be submitted to the Clerk of 

the Board prior to the close of the public hearing. Written protests 

delivered by mail must be received by Valley Sanitary District no later 

than 1:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 12, 2020. Electronically submitted 

protests will not be accepted. 

  

The Board of Directors will consider all protests to the proposed increase.  

If written protests towards the proposed increase are presented on 

behalf of a majority of parcels, the Board of Directors will not impose the 

increase.  If there is no majority protest, the District Board of Directors 

may vote to adopt the proposed rate for sewer services, which will 

become effective as of July 1, 2020. 

  Page 14 of 58



 

www.valley-sanitary.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Why the Rate Increase? 

The District provides wastewater service to its customers, and continually strives to provide excellent service while 

maximizing cost reductions and better utilization of its assets. The District must also be fiscally responsible to ensure 

financial stability in years to come. To this end, the District engaged an independent consultant to perform a cost of 

service analysis and rate study for its wastewater service charges. Based on the rate study, the District anticipates 

there will be future increases in the costs of operating and maintaining the wasterwater systems. The proposed 

wastewater rate increases are necessary to enable the District to: (1) maintain the operational and financial stability 

of the District, including keeping pace with inflation and other cost increases including wastewater treatment costs; 

(2) comply with State and Federal regulations governing the treatment, disposal, and reuse of wastewater; (3) fund 

capital infrastructure improvements needed to repair and update the District’s aging wastewater system; (4) avoid 

operational deficits and depletion of reserves. A copy of the rate study and cost of service analysis providing 

justification for the proposed rates for wastewater service charges is on the District’s website (http://www.valley-

sanitary.org) and is also available during regular office hours of the District.  

The Valley Sanitary District (VSD) Board of Directors will hold a public hearing to discuss the increase of the sewer 

use rates. If approved by the VSD Board of Directors, the rate increase will take effect starting July 1st, 2020. All 

members of the public are welcome to attend the public hearing. 

 

For further information, please call 760.238.5400. 

Para obtener esta información en español, llame al 760.984.0535 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO SEWER USE RATES 

  Date: May 12, 2020 

Time: 1:00 PM 

Location: Valley Sanitary District Board Room  

45-500 Van Buren Street Indio, CA 92201 

An Equivalent Dwelling Unit, or EDU is the average sewer flow of 230 

gallons per day from one single family household. Each single-family 

household is assigned one EDU. For non-household uses, EDUs are 

assigned based on estimated flow and strength of wastewater 

discharge to the wastewater system and are established pursuant 

to Resolution No. 2019-1115 of the District.  

Page 15 of 58

http://www.valley-sanitary.org/
http://www.valley-sanitary.org/


Municipal Financial Services 

2960 Valley Basin Avenue, Henderson, Nevada 89052-3814 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

F I N A L 

Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges 

Prepared for  

Val ley Sanitary Dist r ict ,  Ca l i forn ia  

May 2019 

 

Page 16 of 58



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Intentionally Blank. 

Page 17 of 58



i

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document.

Table of Contents
List of Figures.......................................................................................................................................................ii

List of Tables ........................................................................................................................................................ii

List of Abbreviations ............................................................................................................................................ii

Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................................ES-1
Purpose of the Study...............................................................................................................................ES-1
Projected Cash Flow................................................................................................................................ES-1
Recommended Sewer Service Charges.................................................................................................ES-2

1. Introduction................................................................................................................................................1-1
1.1 District Structure and Leadership..................................................................................................1-1
1.2 Wastewater Management System Description.............................................................................1-1
1.3 Regulatory Requirements...............................................................................................................1-2
1.4 Overview of Utility Rate Setting Process........................................................................................1-2
1.5 Reserve Policy and Sewer Account Funds ....................................................................................1-2
1.6 Methodology for Determination of Sewer Service Charges .........................................................1-3

2. Summary of Users and Wastewater Discharge Characteristics.............................................................2-1
2.1 Equivalent Dwelling Units ...............................................................................................................2-1
2.2 Current Equivalent Dwelling Unit Fee ............................................................................................2-3
2.3 Projected Equivalent Dwelling Units ..............................................................................................2-3
2.4 Equivalent Dwelling Unit Definition................................................................................................2-4
2.5 Equivalent Dwelling Unit Assignments ..........................................................................................2-4

3. Revenue Required from Sewer Service Charges ....................................................................................3-1
3.1 10-Year Capital Improvement Program.........................................................................................3-1
3.2 Current and Projected Debt Service ..............................................................................................3-2
3.3 Operating and Capital Funds Cash Flow .......................................................................................3-3

3.3.1 Fund 11 Cash Flow ...........................................................................................................3-3
3.3.2 Fund 12 Cash Flow ...........................................................................................................3-3
3.3.3 Fund 13 Cash Flow ...........................................................................................................3-4
3.3.4 Cash Flow and Coverage Ratio – All Funds.....................................................................3-4

4. Sewer Service Charges .............................................................................................................................4-1
4.1 Development of Sewer Service Charges .......................................................................................4-1
4.2 Residential Sewer Service Charge Survey.....................................................................................4-2

5. Limitations .................................................................................................................................................5-1

Appendix A: Sewer Service Charges Development Tables ...............................................................................A

Page 18 of 58



Table of Contents Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges

ii

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

List of Figures
Figure ES-1.  Cash Flow Summary, FY20 – FY24 ........................................................................................ES-1

Figure ES-2.  Historical and Projected Residential Annual Sewer Service Charges..................................ES-2

Figure 1-1.  Overview of Rate Setting Analytical Steps..................................................................................1-2

Figure 3-1.  Fund Cash Flow and Coverage Ratio, FY 2019 – FY 2027 ......................................................3-4

Figure 4-1.  Historical, Recommended and Projected Residential Annual Sewer Service Charges ..........4-2

List of Tables
Table 2-1.  Equivalent Dwelling Unit Assignments ........................................................................................2-2

Table 2-2.  Calculation Summary of 2018/2019 Equivalent Dwelling Unit Fee .........................................2-3

Table 2-3.  Current and Projected Equivalent Dwelling Units .......................................................................2-3

Table 2-4.  Industrial Wastewater Treatment Surcharge Formula ...............................................................2-4

Table 3-1.  Ten-Year Capital Improvement Program .....................................................................................3-1

Table 3-2.  Fund 11 Cash Flow FY 2019 – FY 2027 .....................................................................................3-3

Table 3-3.  Fund 12 Cash Flow FY 2019 – FY 2027 .....................................................................................3-3

Table 3-4.  Fund 13 Cash Flow FY 2019 – FY 2027 .....................................................................................3-4

Table 4-1.  Current, Recommended and Projected Sewer Service Charges ...............................................4-1

Table 4-2.  Residential Sewer Service Charge Survey...................................................................................4-2

List of Abbreviations
Ccf Hundred Cubic Feet
CCI Construction Cost Index
CIP Capital Improvement Program
District Valley Sanitary District
EDU Equivalent Dwelling Unit
FY Fiscal year (July 1 to June 30)
FY20 July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020
gpd Gallons per Day
HCF Hundred Cubic Feet
VSD Valley Sanitary District
O&M Operation and maintenance
R&R Renewal and Replacement
SSC Sewer Service Charge

Page 19 of 58



 

 

 ES-1

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

Executive Summary 

In September 2018 the Valley Sanitary District (VSD or District) contracted with Municipal Financial 
Services to evaluate sewer service charges and recommend a revised schedule of sewer service 
charges. 

Purpose of the Study 

The purpose of the study was to evaluate sewer service charges for the Valley Sanitary District. Sewer 
service charges are intended to recover revenues sufficient to adequately fund sewer utility operations, 
maintenance, and capital program expenditures, and meet debt service obligations, while keeping rates 
as competitive as possible and maintaining a prudent level of reserves.  

Evaluation of Capital Improvement Program (CIP) projects extends through Fiscal Year 2028 – 2029 
(FY29). This 10-year time-period was selected to include the impact of $163.4 million in CIP 
expenditures which include the Phase 3 wastewater treatment plant projects. It is recommended that 
the District adopt sewer service charges for FY20 – FY24 (five years). 

The evaluation includes estimates of future operating and non-operating revenues, operating and 
maintenance expenses, debt service obligations, and capital program expenditures. Like all projections, 
the evaluation is based on several assumptions including interest and inflation rates as well as future 
operating and program costs. The evaluation reflects current policies as well as potential changes to 
sewer service charges and sewer capacity charges, and other sources of revenues. To the extent that 
actual conditions differ from those incorporated in the evaluation, actual results may differ from the 
findings developed in this study. 

Projected Cash Flow 
Operating and capital funds cash flow for the five-year period of FY20 – FY24 is shown in Figure ES-1. 
The revenues from sewer service charges and sewer capacity charges include additional revenues from 

annual increases in charges. Note that during 
this five-year period, total expenditures exceed 
total revenues by approximately $15 million. 
Expenditures not funded by revenues are 
funded by use of cash from the fund balance. 

Revenues from sewer service charges and 
sewer capacity charges are required to fund the 
projected $95.8 million in CIP expenditures 
during the five-year period. Approximately 63 
percent of the CIP expenditures ($59.4 million) 
are projected to be funded from issuance of 
new debt with the remainder from cash. After 
issuance of new debt, the annual debt service 
principal and interest payments are projected to 
total approximately $4.1 million per year. 

Figure ES-1.  Cash Flow Summary, FY20 – FY24 

 

Beginning Balance, July 1, 2019 $46,672

Revenues

Sewer Service Charges $61,431

Other Operating $120

Nonoperating $3,959

Interest Earnings $3,375

Capacity Charges $5,780

Loan Disbursements $59,356

Total Revenues $134,021

Expenditures

Fund 11 Operating & Maintenance $38,710

Fund 11 Capital $2,187

Fund 12 Capital $69,908

Fund 13 Capital $23,742

Debt Service $14,440

Total Expenditures $148,988

Revenues less Expenditures ($14,967)

Ending Balance, June 30, 2024 $31,705

Page 20 of 58



Executive Summary Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges

 

ES-2 

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

Recommended Sewer Service Charges 

During the past nine years, sewer service charges have been adjusted twice. In 2014, sewer service 
charges were increased from $259 per unit of service to $270 (an increase of approximately 4 percent). 
The most recent adjustment was in 2016 when sewer service charges were increased by 16 percent to 
$313 per unit of service. 

The District’s historical and recommended sewer service charges are shown in the table below. The 
recommended sewer service charges for FY20 and FY21 are $330 per unit (an initial increase of about 
5.4 percent). The recommended sewer service charges for FY22 – FY24 are $350 per unit (an increase 
of about 6.1 percent). 
 

 

Figure ES-2.  Historical and Projected Residential Annual Sewer Service Charges 

 

It is recommended that in FY22, the District evaluate whether revenue from sewer service charges 
developed in this five-year rate plan will be sufficient to fund capital expenditure increases projected for 
FY25 – FY29.

$117
$127

$152

$180

$215
$232

$259 $259 $259 $259
$270 $270 $270 $270

$313 $313 $313 $313
$330 $330

$350 $350 $350

9%

20% 18% 19%

8%
12%

0% 0% 0%
4%

0% 0% 0%

16%

0% 0% 0%

5.4%

0.0%

6.1%

0.0% 0.0%

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

Historical Sewer Service Charges

Recommended Sewer Service Charges

Page 21 of 58



 

 

 1-1

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

Section 1 

Introduction 

Sewer Service Charges are intended to recover revenues sufficient to adequately fund sewer utility 

operations, maintenance, and capital replacement expenditures, and meet debt service obligations, 

while keeping rates as competitive as possible and maintaining a prudent level of reserves. 

1.1 District Structure and Leadership 

The Valley Sanitary District is an independent special district, which operates under the authority of the 
Health and Safety Code, Sanitary District act of 1923, section 6400 Et. Sequentia. The District was 
formed June 1, 1925 and is governed by a five-member Board of Directors, elected at large from within 
the District’s service area. The General Manager administers the day-to-day operations of the District in 
accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board of Directors. The District employs 
approximately 27 regular employees organized in three departments. 

1.2 Wastewater Management System Description 

The District provides sewer services to approximately 27,850 connections within its 19.5 square mile 
service area, located in the eastern desert area of Riverside County. The VSD service area primarily 
consists of residential areas with moderate commercial, industrial, and public land use encompassing 
much of the City of Indio, portions of the City of La Quinta and City of Coachella, and unincorporated 
areas of the County of Riverside. 

A vast wastewater management system has 
been built to collect, transport, treat and 
dispose wastewater. The wastewater 
treatment, collection and disposal system 
comprise approximately: 

• 254 miles of sanitary sewer pipe;  

• 4,910 sewer manholes;  

• 4 sewage pump stations;  

• 12.5 mgd capacity secondary 

treatment plant; and 

• Administrative Headquarters Building. 

Wastewater is collected from the thousands 
of customers, transported to the 
Wastewater Treatment Facility for 
treatment and subsequently discharged into the Whitewater Channel via an outfall. 

The Valley Sanitary District is exploring the possibility with the Indio Water Authority of a recycled / 
reclaimed water project. This project will reuse tertiary treated water as a new water source for 
sustainable and beneficial use. The City of Indio and the Valley Sanitary District have created a Joint 
Powers Authority for this purpose, the East Valley Reclamation Authority. This project is in the preliminary 
exploration stage. 

Page 22 of 58



Section 1 Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges

 

1-2 

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

1.3 Regulatory Requirements  

The updated Sewer Service Charges recommended in this study should fulfill the requirements found in 

the Revenue Program Guidelines published by the California Environmental Protection Agency’s State 

Water Resource Control Board from its Policy for Implementing the State Revolving Fund for Construction 

of Wastewater Treatment Facilities. 

1.4 Overview of Utility Rate Setting Process 
Sewer rate studies classically have three categories of technical analysis – the development of revenue 
required from rates, the allocation of costs among functional cost categories (cost-of-service analysis) 
and the design of a rate structure. An overview of the rate-setting analytical steps is shown in Figure 1-1. 

The revenue required from rates is net of 
non-rate revenues (for example interest 
earned on fund balances and loan 
disbursements) and other revenues not 
required from rates. The allocation of costs 
is structured so that the revenue required 
from rates is distributed proportionally for 
each sewer service function in a manner 
that allows the development of unit costs 
that are applicable to all customers. The 
rate structure uses the unit costs as a basis 
for aggregating costs into rates that are 
applicable to the various customer classes. 

Figure 1-1.  Overview of Rate Setting Analytical Steps 

 

1.5 Reserve Policy and Sewer Account Funds 

The District adopted a Financial Reserve Policy on April 9, 2013 (Reserve Fund Policy).1 The Reserve 
Fund Policy established reserve funds for its long term organizational operational stability and the 
reserve funds enable the District to minimize significant rate fluctuations due to unforeseen and 
expected cash flow requirements. The Reserve Fund Policy is to ensure that the District accumulates, 
manages, maintains, and uses certain financial resources only for specific purposes. The District 
manages the following reserves: 

• Capital Replacement Reserve Fund;  

• Capital Improvement Reserve Fund; 

• Debt Service Reserve Fund;  

• Emergency Reserve Fund;  

• Operating Reserve Fund; and 

• Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund. 

 

                                                      
1 See Resolution No. 2013-1040. 

 

Revenue Requirement Analysis

Cost-of-Service Analysis

Rate-Design Analysis

Compares  revenues of the utility to its 

operating and capital costs to 

determine the adequacy of the existing 

rates to recover costs

Allocates the revenue requirements to 

the various customer classes of service 

in a fair and equitable manner

Considers both the level and structure 

of the rate design to collect the 

distributed revenue requirements from 

each class of service

Page 23 of 58



Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges Section 1

 

 1-3

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

The projected sewer service charges are sufficient to maintain reserves at levels that meet Reserve Fund 
Policy objectives. 

1.6 Methodology for Determination of Sewer Service Charges 

Calculation of a Sewer Service Charge is a simple mathematical operation. Defining the wastewater 
characteristics and revenue requirements data required for that operation are more complex and 
represent a major emphasis of the Sewer Service Charges study. Basic steps in defining the basis for 
and computing the Sewer Service Charge are as follows: 

Define revenue required from Sewer Service Charges. The District’s most recent operating budget, 
multi-year Capital Improvement Project budget, and target levels of reserve funds are used to project 
annual expenditures and revenues required from Sewer Service Charges. 

Define user wastewater system characteristics. Prior estimates of user characteristics are updated and 
used to estimate average annual Equivalent Dwelling Units. 

Develop Sewer Service Charges. Revenue required from Sewer Service Charges is divided by the 
estimated number of Equivalent Dwelling Units to yield the Equivalent Dwelling Unit fee. The fee is 
applied to the estimated number of Equivalent Dwelling Units for each account. 

 

 

 

 

Page 24 of 58



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Intentionally Blank. 

Page 25 of 58



 

 

 2-1

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

Section 2 

Summary of Users and Wastewater 
Discharge Characteristics 

The purpose of this section is to summarize the identification of residential and commercial users and 

their corresponding wastewater discharge characteristics. 

2.1 Equivalent Dwelling Units  

The District’s current sewer use fees are shown in Resolution No. 2018-1100. Section 1 of the 
Resolution defines the “Equivalent Dwelling Unit” (EDU) for single family household accounts. The EDU 
for single family household accounts is based on estimates of the average daily wastewater flow per 
household (300 gallons per day). 

The District charges sewer use fees using the County of Riverside assessment rolls and, for users that 
are not billed by the County Tax Collector, the District issues a bill directly to the user. 

The number of estimated EDUs on tax rolls and accounts receivable is the sum of the number of single 
family dwelling units (single family dwellings, condominiums, townhouses, apartments, permanent 
mobile homes and duplex units) plus the equivalent number of EDUs for non-household accounts. 

Section 2 of the Resolution No. 2018-1100 lists the equivalent number of EDUs for the various 
categories of non-household accounts. Categories include those for different businesses (restaurants, 
car washes, retails stores, etc.), schools, institutions, industries/manufacturing, Cabazon Band of 
Mission Indian facilities, movie theaters and RV dump stations. A list of non-household account 
categories from Section 2 of the Resolution are shown in the table on the next page. 

The number of estimated EDUs on tax rolls and accounts receivable used to develop the current (FY 
2018-2019) Equivalent Dwelling Unit fee is approximately 35,160. 

 
  

Page 26 of 58



Section 2 Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges

 

2-2 

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

Table 2-1.  Equivalent Dwelling Unit Assignments 

  

 
  

User Classification EDU per Unit

1 Single Family Dwellings * 1 each

2 Recreation Vehicle/Motel Rooms 0.5 each

3 Recreation Vehicle w/sewer service connection 1 each

4 Library/Church 1 each

5 Church with Kitchen 2 each

6 Professional Building (Tenant) 1 each

7 Administrative Offices-city, county, state 1 5 employees

8 Hospital 1 2 beds

9 Rest Homes 1 3 beds

10 Laundry/Laundromat 1 3 washers

11 Restaurant/Tavern 3 blank

12 Restaurant and Tavern or Drive-Thru 4 blank

13 Gas Station 2 blank

14 Gas Station with Wash Rack 3 blank

15 Car Wash 3 blank

16 Animal Hospital/Clinic/Kennel 3 blank

17 Barber Shop/Beauty Shop 1 2 sinks

18 Retail Stores 1 2000 square feet

19 Warehousing 1 restroom

20 Food Markets 1 2000 square feet

Plus 12 food grinder

SCHOOLS

21 Pre-School, K-5 1 23 students

22 Junior High/High/Continuation/Adult 1 14 students

MOVIE THEATERS

23 Theaters 1 100 seats

24 Other theaters 1 100 seats

INSTITUTIONAL

25 County Sheriff substation/County Jail 1 3.5 employees

26 County Juvenile Hall 1 5 employees

27 County administration, courts, clinics, mental health 1 20 gallons/fixture

28 Restrooms in parks 1 restroom

INDUSTRIES/MANUFACTURING

29 For domestic wastewater 1 20 gallons/fixture

For non-domestic wastewater non-domestic wastewater formula

CABAZON BAND OF MISSION INDIANS FACILITIES

All uses specifically on this schedule shall be charged the same UOS as others

30 Casino Facilities 1 20 gallons/fixture

RV DUMP STATIONS

31 Recreational vehicle park w/hook-up; w/o dump stations 1 6 spaces

32 Recreational “rally field” with dump stations 0.5 acre

33 Dump stations for RV’s and buses 15 station

Page 27 of 58



Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges Section 2

 

 2-3

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

2.2 Current Equivalent Dwelling Unit Fee 

The formula for the EDU User Fee of domestic wastewater from Resolution No. 2018-1100 is shown in 
the table below. 

  

Table 2-2.  Calculation Summary of 2018/2019 Equivalent Dwelling Unit Fee 

  
 

Estimates of projected revenue requirements are developed in Section 3. Estimates of projected EDUs 
are developed in the next subsection. 

2.3 Projected Equivalent Dwelling Units 
Current and projected EDUs are shown in the table below. Projected EDUs are based on annual 
increases of 245 EDUs for accounts billed on the tax rolls and 5 EDUs for accounts that are direct bills. 

 

Table 2-3.  Current and Projected Equivalent Dwelling Units 

  
 

  

Balance of 

Revenue to be 

Collected

divided by

Estimated EDUs on Tax 

Rolls and Accounts 

Receivable

equals
Equivalent Dwelling Unit 

Fee

$11,011,086 / 35,160 = $313

Current Five-Year Rate Plan Projected

Item FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Equivalent Dwelling Units

Tax Rolls 32,842 32,842 33,087 33,332 33,577 33,822 34,067 34,312 34,557

annual growth > 245 245 245 245 245 245 245 245

Direct Billing 2,318 2,318 2,323 2,328 2,333 2,338 2,343 2,348 2,353

annual growth > 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

Total EDUs 35,160 35,410 35,660 35,910 36,160 36,410 36,660 36,910 37,160

Unit increase 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250

Percent increase 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%

Page 28 of 58



Section 2 Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges

 

2-4 

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

2.4 Equivalent Dwelling Unit Definition 

The District’s Board annually adopts resolutions related to rates for sewer use. The District’s current 
sewer use fees are shown in Resolution No. 2018-1100 (Resolution). 

Section 1 of the Resolution defines an “Equivalent Dwelling Unit” (EDU). One (1) EDU represents an 
average daily wastewater flow of 300 gallons from one single family household. For non-household uses, 
the value of equivalency to a household is used for purposes of computing uniform financial obligations. 

Section 2 of the Resolution lists assignments of EDUs for classifications of types of property and use 
(see Table 2-1, above). 

Section 3 of the Resolution describes calculation of a Non-domestic Sewer User Fee. A formula for 
calculating the industrial wastewater treatment surcharge (Non-domestic Sewer User Fee) from Section 
3 is shown in the table below. Note that the formula requires detailed information of the wastewater flow 
and concentration of the discharge and general information of the District’s annual expenditures. 

 

Table 2-3.  Industrial Wastewater Treatment Surcharge Formula 

  
 

It is recommended that the District update the: 1) definition of an EDU and the wastewater discharge 
characteristics for a single family household (Section 1 of the annual rate resolution); 2) list of EDU 
assignments (Section 2 of the annual rate resolution); and 3) formula for calculating the industrial 
wastewater treatment surcharge (Section 3 of the annual rate resolution). 

2.5 Equivalent Dwelling Unit Assignments 
The District received water use data from Indio Water Authority for its water meters within the District’s 
sewer service area.  

It is recommended that the District evaluate and update Equivalent Dwelling Unit assignments for 
establishments that have food service functions. The evaluation should include determination of 
wastewater discharge characteristics of those type of establishments and equating those characteristics 
to those for a single family dwelling.  

 

 

(A) (B) (C)

Q 0.42 0.36 (COD) 0.22 (SS)

300 500 240

Where:

Q = daily sewage flow in gallons

COD = quarterly 92-day average COD concentration in mg/L for COD in excess of 500 mg/L

concentrations of 500 mg/L or less will be calculated at 500 mg/L

SS = quarterly 92-day average SS concentration in mg/L for SS in excess of 240 mg/L

concentrations of 240 mg/L or less will be calculated at 240 mg/L

(A) = the portion of annual expenditures related to sewage flow

(B) = the portion of annual expenditures related to sewage COD loadings

(C) = the portion of annual expenditures related to sewage SS loadings

EDU = [ + + ]

Page 29 of 58



 

 

 3-1

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

Section 3 

Revenue Required from Sewer 
Service Charges 

Sewer Service Charges must adequately fund sewer utility operations, capital costs, reserves, and 

bonded debt related to the provision of sewer service. The revenue required from Sewer Service Charges 

is developed in this section. 

3.1 10-Year Capital Improvement Program 
The District’s current Capital Improvement Program for FY20 – FY29 is summarized in the table below. 
CIP projects are to be funded by cash except for the projects related to the Plant Expansion 2B/2C. 
Projects related to the Plant Expansion 2B/2C totaling approximately $59,356,000 are anticipated to be 
funded through a low interest loan from the State of California State Water Resources Control Board. 

 

Table 3-1.  Ten-Year Capital Improvement Program 

  

 

  

(all values in $thousands)

Year Number > 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Funds 12 & 13 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 Total

Sewer Main Repair & Replace 1,090 3,073 5,754 8,113 8,409 8,691 8,983 9,284 6,443 3,401 63,241

Plant Expansion 2B/2C 5,057 27,149 27,149 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 59,356

Plant Expansion Phase 3 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,817 14,418 14,851 33,146

Vehicle & Major Equipment 610 610 610 610 610 610 610 610 610 610 6,100

Sewer Siphon Replacement 0 4,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,000

Lateral Grant Program 53 54 55 56 57 59 60 61 62 63 580

Contingency 90 92 94 96 97 99 101 103 105 108 985

Total 6,960 34,979 33,662 8,875 9,174 9,459 9,754 13,875 21,639 19,032 167,409

Cumulative 6,960 41,939 75,602 84,476 93,650 103,109 112,862 126,738 148,377 167,409

Page 30 of 58



Section 3 Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges

 

3-2 

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

3.2 Current and Projected Debt Service 

Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015  

On August 26, 2006, the District issued the 2006 Certificates of Participation in the amount of 
$12,915,000.  The purpose of the Certificates was to fund Phase I of the District’s treatment plant 
expansion.  Interest ranging from 3.50% to 4.375% is payable semi-annually on February 1st and August 
1st commencing February 1, 2007.   

On June 18, 2015, the District issued Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 in the 
amount of $7,540,000. The purpose of the bond issuance was to provide funds to defease and refund 
on current basis the District’s outstanding 2006 Certificates of Participation (Treatment Plan Expansion) 
and pay the costs of issuing the bonds. The bonds are payable from and secured by a lien on net 
revenue of the wastewater system of the District. The aggregate difference in debt service as result of 
the refinancing was in the amount of $1,596,780.  The economic gain on the refinancing was 
$500,181. Interest rate of 5% (except for 2.125% in 2023) is payable semi-annually on each December 
1 and June 1 beginning December 1, 2015. The bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. 
The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2018 was $5,835,000. The term of the certificates which run 

through 2026. Repayment of the debt is funded through sewer use fees of the District.2 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Low Interest Loan  

The District executed an installment sale agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board (the 

“SWRCB) for the construction of the Requa Avenue Sewer Interceptor Project.  As part of the Requa 

Avenue Sewer Interceptor Project, the District constructed 4.2 miles of new gravity flow sewer pipeline 

and related utility improvements designed to collect and convey sanitary sewer flow within an existing 

public right-of-way through central Indio, California to the existing District’s Water Reclamation Plant.  

The SWRCB provided financial assistance through a Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan - Project No. 

C-06-8116-110, Agreement No. D1601003-550-0. The total amount of the loan funded was 

$12,746,147.  Beginning June 2019, the District will repay the principal of the project funds, together 

with all interest accruing thereon, annually to the SWRCB.  As of June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance 

of the SWRCB revolving fund loan was in the amount of $12,920,155.3 

A reserve account is required to be maintained equal to one (1) year of the SWRCB revolving fund loan 

debt service payments from unrestricted net revenues.  As of June 30, 2018, the reserve requirement 

was $553,360. The balance held in the reserve at June 30, 2018 was $1,059,648. Debt covenants of 

the SWRCB revolving fund loan require that the District have net revenues that are at least 125% of the 

total debt service payments (including 2015 Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds).  Net revenue and 

total debt service paid during the year ended June 30, 2018 were in the amounts of $5,690,579 and 

$889,687, respectively, which resulted in ratio of 640%. 

Projected Low Interest Loan and Debt Service  

Projects related to the Plant Expansion 2B/2C totaling $59,356,000 are anticipated to be funded 
through a low interest loan from the State Water Resources Control Board. The loan terms are projected 
to be a 30-year payback period and a 2.0 percent interest rate with the first years’ $2,650,000 principal 
and interest payments due in FY23. 

Detailed debt service schedules are included in Appendix A, Table A-1 (current debt service) and  
Table A-2 (projected debt service). 

 

                                                      
2 See the Valley Sanitary District Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Year Ended June 30, 2018, page 13. 

3 Ibid, page 13. 

Page 31 of 58



Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges Section 3

 

 3-3

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

3.3 Operating and Capital Funds Cash Flow 

Cash flow for Fund 11, Fund 12 and Fund 13 is summarized in the following sections. 

3.3.1 Fund 11 Cash Flow 

Cash flow for the Operating Fund (Fund 11), is summarized in the table below. Detailed expenditure and 
revenue projections are included in Appendix A, Table A-3 (expenditures) and Table A-4 (revenues). Note 
that expenditures include $9,000,000 in transfers from Fund 11 to Fund 12 from FY25-FY27 for funding 
capital projects. 
 

Table 3-2.  Fund 11 Cash Flow FY 2019 – FY 2027 

  

 

3.3.2 Fund 12 Cash Flow 

Cash flow for the Capital Fund (Fund 12), is summarized in the table below. Note that during FY25-FY27 
the fund balance becomes negative. It is recommended that the District monitor its projected capital 
expenditure plan so that additional funds can be made available from rates, loans or some other source. 
 

Table 3-3.  Fund 12 Cash Flow FY 2019 – FY 2027 

  

All Values in $thousands Budget Five-Year Rate Plan Projected Total

Item FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY20-FY24

Beginning Balance, July 1 $20,445 $20,462 $20,462 $20,182 $20,332 $20,162 $19,672 $14,332 $10,232

Expenditures

O & M (net of depreciation) 7,024 7,253 7,489 7,734 7,986 8,248 8,518 8,797 9,086 $38,710

Capital 400 412 424 437 450 464 478 492 507 2,187

Debt Service 2015 Refunding Bond 499 464 465 463 463 462 463 463 0 2,317

Debt Service 2019 SRF Loan 553 553 553 553 553 553 553 553 2,767

Capital Reserve Transfer to Fund 12 3,973 4,099 4,230 4,364 4,503 4,647 4,795 4,949 5,107 21,843

Add'l Reserve Transfer to Fund 12 3,000 3,000 3,000 0

Total Expenditures 11,896 12,781 13,162 13,551 13,955 14,374 17,807 18,254 18,253 67,824

Revenues

Sewer Service Charges 11,005 11,691 11,776 12,583 12,648 12,733 14,306 16,056 18,028 61,431

Other Operating 23 23 24 24 24 25 25 26 26 120

Nonoperating 745 760 776 792 808 824 841 858 875 3,959

Interest 140 307 307 303 305 302 295 215 153 1,524

Total Revenues 11,913 12,781 12,882 13,701 13,785 13,884 15,467 17,154 19,083 67,034

Net Revenue 17 0 (280) 150 (170) (490) (2,340) (1,100) 830 (790)

Ending Balance, June 30 20,462 20,462 20,182 20,332 20,162 19,672 14,332 10,232 8,062

All Values in $thousands Budget Five-Year Rate Plan Projected Total

Item FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY20-FY24

Beginning Balance, July 1 $19,867 $21,155 $23,182 $19,118 $16,119 $9,975 $3,584 -$41 -$3,860

Expenditures

Capital Projects 2,557 4,938 24,119 22,803 8,875 9,174 9,459 9,754 11,585 $69,908

SRF Loan Disbursement 0 -3,034 -16,290 -16,290 0 0 0 0 0 -35,613

SRF New Debt Service 0 61 386 712 1,590 1,590 1,590 1,590 1,590 4,340

Current Debt Service 426 425 426 424 424 424 424 424 0 2,124

Total Expenditures 2,983 2,389 8,642 7,650 10,889 11,187 11,474 11,768 13,175 40,758

Revenues

Annual Transfer from Fund 11 3,973 4,099 4,230 4,364 4,503 4,647 4,795 4,949 5,107 21,843

Variable Transfer from Fund 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 3,000 3,000 0

Interest 298 317 348 287 242 150 54 -1 -58 1,343

Total Revenues 4,271 4,416 4,578 4,651 4,745 4,797 7,849 7,948 8,049 23,186

Net Revenue 1,288 2,027 (4,065) (2,999) (6,144) (6,391) (3,625) (3,820) (5,126)

Ending Balance, June 30 21,155 23,182 19,118 16,119 9,975 3,584 -41 -3,860 -8,987

Page 32 of 58



Section 3 Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges

 

3-4 

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

3.3.3 Fund 13 Cash Flow 

Cash flow for the Capital Fund (Fund 13), is summarized in the table below. 
 

Table 3-4.  Fund 13 Cash Flow FY 2019 – FY 2027 

  

 

3.3.4 Cash Flow and Coverage Ratio – All Funds 

Cash flow and coverage ratio for the current fiscal year (2018-19) and the next five fiscal years is 
summarized in the figure below. Detailed debt service coverage calculations are included in Appendix A, 
Table A-5. Note that the Fund 12 balance is projected to depleted during FY25. 
 

 

Figure 3-1.  Fund Cash Flow and Coverage Ratio, FY 2019 – FY 2027 

All Values in $thousands Budget Five-Year Rate Plan Projected Total

Item FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY20-FY24

Beginning Balance, July 1 $4,305 $5,054 $5,970 $6,951 $7,781 $8,088 $8,449 $8,855 $9,308

Expenditures

Capital Projects 211 2,023 10,860 10,860 0 0 0 0 2,290 $23,742

SRF Loan Disbursement 0 -2,023 -10,860 -10,860 0 0 0 0 0 -23,742

SRF New Debt Service 0 40 258 475 1,060 1,060 1,060 1,060 1,060 2,893

Current Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 211 40 258 475 1,060 1,060 1,060 1,060 3,350 2,893

Revenues

Interest 65 76 90 104 117 121 127 133 140 508

Capacity Charges 896 880 1,150 1,200 1,250 1,300 1,340 1,380 1,423 5,780

Total Revenues 960 956 1,240 1,304 1,367 1,421 1,467 1,513 1,562 6,288

Net Revenue 749 915 982 829 307 361 407 453 (1,788)

Ending Balance, June 30 5,054 5,970 6,951 7,781 8,088 8,449 8,855 9,308 7,520

20,500 20,500 20,200 20,300 20,200 19,700

14,300

10,200
8,100

21,200 23,200
19,100 16,100

10,000
3,600

0

-3,900
-9,000

5,100
6,000

7,000
7,800

8,100

8,400

8,900
9,300

7,500

4.01x 4.15x 3.13x 2.73x 1.72x 1.70x 2.03x 2.38x 3.56x

-$20,000

-$10,000

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

B
a

la
n

ce
 ($

th
o

u
sa

n
d

s)

Fund 11 Fund 12 Fund 13 Coverage Ratio

Five-year Rate Plan

Page 33 of 58



 

 

 4-1

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

Section 4 

Sewer Service Charges 

Sewer Service Charges are developed based on the projected number of Equivalent Residential Dwelling 
Units and the revenue required from the charges. 

4.1 Development of Sewer Service Charges 

The annual amount of revenue required from sewer service charges, number of equivalent dwelling units 
and the calculation of the sewer service charge per Equivalent Dwelling Unit are shown in the table 
below for FY19 – FY27. 

 

Table 4-1.  Current, Recommended and Projected Sewer Service Charges 

 
 
  

All Cash in $thousands Current Five-Year Rate Plan Projected Total

Item FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY20-FY24

Revenue Required

Fund 11 O & M 7,024 7,253 7,489 7,734 7,986 8,248 8,518 8,797 9,086 38,710

Fund 11 Capital 400 412 424 437 450 464 478 492 507 2,187

Debt Service 499 1,017 1,019 1,016 1,016 1,015 1,016 1,016 553 5,084

Capital reserve fund 3,973 4,099 4,230 4,364 4,503 4,647 4,795 4,949 5,107 21,843

Less other taxes, interest & non-

operating income 
(885) (1,090) (1,106) (1,118) (1,137) (1,151) (1,161) (1,098) (1,055) (5,603)

Add/Use Fund Balance 0 0 -280 150 -170 -490 660 1,900 3,830 -790

Total Revenue Required 11,011 11,691 11,776 12,583 12,648 12,733 14,306 16,056 18,028 61,431

Dollar increase 680 85 808 65 85 1,573 1,750 1,972

Percent increase 6% 1% 7% 1% 1% 12% 12% 12%

Equivalent Dwelling Units

Tax Rolls 32,842 32,842 33,087 33,332 33,577 33,822 34,067 34,312 34,557

annual growth > 245 245 245 245 245 245 245 245

Direct Billing 2,318 2,318 2,323 2,328 2,333 2,338 2,343 2,348 2,353

annual growth > 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

Total EDUs 35,160 35,410 35,660 35,910 36,160 36,410 36,660 36,910 37,160

Unit increase 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250

Percent increase 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%

EDU Fee

Revenue Required ($thousands) 11,011 11,691 11,776 12,583 12,648 12,733 14,306 16,056 18,028

EDUs 35,160 35,410 35,660 35,910 36,160 36,410 36,660 36,910 37,160

EDU Fee (round to $5) $313.00 $330.00 $330.00 $350.00 $350.00 $350.00 $390.00 $435.00 $485.00

Fee increase $17.00 $0.00 $20.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40.00 $45.00 $50.00

Percent increase 5.4% 0.0% 6.1% 0.0% 0.0% 11.4% 11.5% 11.5%

Page 34 of 58



Section 4 Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges

 

4-2 

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

The figure below shows historical annual Residential Sewer Service Charges from FY02 through FY19 
(18 years), recommended annual Sewer Service Charges for FY20 through FY24 (five years) and 
projected annual Sewer Service Charges for FY25 through FY27 (three years). The annual average 
percent increase over FY02-FY24 (23 years) is approximately 5.1 percent. 
 

 

Figure 4-1.  Historical, Recommended and Projected Residential Annual Sewer Service Charges 

 

4.2 Residential Sewer Service Charge Survey 
The District’s current (FY 2018-19) and recommended (FY 2019-20) Sewer Service Charges were 
compared to the sewer service charges for other nearby agencies. The comparison is for single family 
dwelling units. Results of the survey are shown in Table 4-2. 
 

 

Table 4-2.  Residential Sewer Service Charge Survey 

 

 

 

$117
$127

$152

$180

$215
$232

$259 $259 $259 $259
$270 $270 $270 $270

$313 $313 $313 $313
$330 $330

$350 $350 $350

$390

$435

$485

9%

20% 18% 19%

8%
12%

0% 0% 0%
4%

0% 0% 0%

16%

0% 0% 0%

5.4%

0.0%

6.1%

0.0% 0.0%

11% 12% 11%

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Historical Sewer Service Charges

Recommended and Projected Sewer Service Charges

Mission Springs Water District $602

City of Coachella $552

California Statewide Average (FY 2016-17) $529

City of Beaumont $489

Cathedral City (Desert Water Agency) $345

Valley Sanitary District (recommended) $330

Coachella Valley Water District $324

Valley Sanitary District (current) $313

City of Palm Springs $288 increases to $420 by 2031

City of Banning $235

Page 35 of 58



 

 

 5-1

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

Section 5 

Limitations 

This document was prepared solely for the Valley Sanitary District in accordance with professional 

standards at the time the services were performed and in accordance with the contract between Valley 

Sanitary District and Municipal Financial Services. This document is governed by the specific scope of 

work authorized by Valley Sanitary District; it is not intended to be relied upon by any other party. We 

have relied on information or instructions provided by Valley Sanitary District and, unless otherwise 

expressly indicated, have made no independent investigation as to the validity, completeness, or 

accuracy of such information. 

 

 

 

Page 36 of 58



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Intentionally Blank. 

Page 37 of 58



Evaluation of Sewer Service Charges 

 

 A

Use of contents on this sheet is subject to the limitations specified at the end of this document. 

Appendix A: Sewer Service Charges Development Tables 

 

 

Page 38 of 58



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Intentionally Blank. 

Page 39 of 58



T
a

b
le

 A
-1

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

D
e

b
t 

Se
rv

ic
e

 S
ch

e
d

u
le

s

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 R

e
fu

n
d

in
g

 B
o

n
d

s,
 S

e
ri

e
s 

2
0

1
5

P
e

ri
o

d
 E

n
d

in
g

1
2

/1
/2

0
1

5
6

/1
/2

0
1

6
1

2
/1

/2
0

1
6

6
/1

/2
0

1
7

1
2

/1
/2

0
1

7
6

/1
/2

0
1

8
1

2
/1

/2
0

1
8

6
/1

/2
0

1
9

1
2

/1
/2

0
1

9
6

/1
/2

0
2

0
1

2
/1

/2
0

2
0

6
/1

/2
0

2
1

1
2

/1
/2

0
2

1
6

/1
/2

0
2

2
1

2
/1

/2
0

2
2

6
/1

/2
0

2
3

1
2

/1
/2

0
2

3
6

/1
/2

0
2

4
1

2
/1

/2
0

2
4

6
/1

/2
0

2
5

1
2

/1
/2

0
2

5
6

/1
/2

0
2

6

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l
5

5
0

,0
0

0
5

6
5

,0
0

0
5

9
0

,0
0

0
6

2
0

,0
0

0
6

5
0

,0
0

0
6

8
5

,0
0

0
7

1
5

,0
0

0
7

5
0

,0
0

0
7

6
5

,0
0

0
8

0
5

,0
0

0
8

4
5

,0
0

0

In
te

re
st

1
6

0
,9

3
4

1
7

7
,7

1
9

1
6

3
,9

6
9

1
6

3
,9

6
9

1
4

9
,8

4
4

1
4

9
,8

4
4

1
3

5
,0

9
4

1
3

5
,0

9
4

1
1

9
,5

9
4

1
1

9
,5

9
4

1
0

3
,3

4
4

1
0

3
,3

4
4

8
6

,2
1

9
8

6
,2

1
9

6
8

,3
4

4
6

8
,3

4
4

6
0

,3
7

5
6

0
,3

7
5

4
1

,2
5

0
4

1
,2

5
0

2
1

,1
2

5
2

1
,1

2
5

D
e

b
t 

Se
rv

ic
e

1
6

0
,9

3
4

7
2

7
,7

1
9

1
6

3
,9

6
9

7
2

8
,9

6
9

1
4

9
,8

4
4

7
3

9
,8

4
4

1
3

5
,0

9
4

7
5

5
,0

9
4

1
1

9
,5

9
4

7
6

9
,5

9
4

1
0

3
,3

4
4

7
8

8
,3

4
4

8
6

,2
1

9
8

0
1

,2
1

9
6

8
,3

4
4

8
1

8
,3

4
4

6
0

,3
7

5
8

2
5

,3
7

5
4

1
,2

5
0

8
4

6
,2

5
0

2
1

,1
2

5
8

6
6

,1
2

5

Fi
sc

a
l Y

e
a

r
FY

1
6

FY
1

7
FY

1
8

FY
1

9
FY

2
0

FY
2

1
FY

2
2

FY
2

3
FY

2
4

FY
2

5
FY

2
6

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l
5

5
0

,0
0

0
5

6
5

,0
0

0
5

9
0

,0
0

0
6

2
0

,0
0

0
6

5
0

,0
0

0
6

8
5

,0
0

0
7

1
5

,0
0

0
7

5
0

,0
0

0
7

6
5

,0
0

0
8

0
5

,0
0

0
8

4
5

,0
0

0

In
te

re
st

3
3

8
,6

5
3

3
2

7
,9

3
8

2
9

9
,6

8
8

2
7

0
,1

8
8

2
3

9
,1

8
8

2
0

6
,6

8
8

1
7

2
,4

3
8

1
3

6
,6

8
8

1
2

0
,7

5
0

8
2

,5
0

0
4

2
,2

5
0

T
o

ta
l

8
8

8
,6

5
3

8
9

2
,9

3
8

8
8

9
,6

8
8

8
9

0
,1

8
8

8
8

9
,1

8
8

8
9

1
,6

8
8

8
8

7
,4

3
8

8
8

6
,6

8
8

8
8

5
,7

5
0

8
8

7
,5

0
0

8
8

7
,2

5
0

%
 a

llo
c

Fu
n

d
 1

1
-5

2
.1

7
4

%
4

6
3

,6
4

6
4

6
5

,8
8

1
4

6
4

,1
8

6
4

6
4

,4
4

6
4

6
3

,9
2

5
4

6
5

,2
2

9
4

6
3

,0
1

2
4

6
2

,6
2

0
4

6
2

,1
3

1
4

6
3

,0
4

4
4

6
2

,9
1

4

Fu
n

d
 1

2
-4

7
.8

2
6

%
4

2
5

,0
0

7
4

2
7

,0
5

6
4

2
5

,5
0

2
4

2
5

,7
4

1
4

2
5

,2
6

3
4

2
6

,4
5

8
4

2
4

,4
2

6
4

2
4

,0
6

7
4

2
3

,6
1

9
4

2
4

,4
5

6
4

2
4

,3
3

6

T
o

ta
l

8
8

8
,6

5
3

8
9

2
,9

3
8

8
8

9
,6

8
8

8
9

0
,1

8
8

8
8

9
,1

8
8

8
9

1
,6

8
8

8
8

7
,4

3
8

8
8

6
,6

8
8

8
8

5
,7

5
0

8
8

7
,5

0
0

8
8

7
,2

5
0

C
le

a
n

 W
a

te
r 

S
ta

te
 R

e
v

o
lv

in
g

 F
u

n
d

 -
 P

ro
je

ct
 N

o
. 

C
-0

6
-8

1
1

6
-1

1
0

, 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
N

o
. 

D
1

6
0

1
0

0
3

-5
5

0
-0

1
2

,7
4

6
,1

4
7

<
 D

is
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t

1
7

4
,0

0
8

<
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 P

e
ri

o
d

 I
n

te
re

st

1
2

,9
2

0
,1

5
5

<
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 P

e
ri

o
d

 I
n

te
re

st

1
.7

%
<

 I
n

te
re

st
 R

a
te

3
0

<
 T

e
rm

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
p

e
ri

o
d

 >
1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

FY
1

9
FY

2
0

FY
2

1
FY

2
2

FY
2

3
FY

2
4

FY
2

5
FY

2
6

FY
2

7
FY

2
8

FY
2

9
FY

3
0

FY
3

1
FY

3
2

FY
3

3
FY

3
4

FY
3

5
FY

3
6

FY
3

7
FY

3
8

FY
3

9
FY

4
0

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l
3

3
3

,7
1

8
3

3
9

,3
9

1
3

4
5

,1
6

1
3

5
1

,0
2

9
3

5
6

,9
9

6
3

6
3

,0
6

5
3

6
9

,2
3

7
3

7
5

,5
1

4
3

8
1

,8
9

8
3

8
8

,3
9

0
3

9
4

,9
9

3
4

0
1

,7
0

8
4

0
8

,5
3

7
4

1
5

,4
8

2
4

2
2

,5
4

5
4

2
9

,7
2

8
4

3
7

,0
3

4
4

4
4

,4
6

3
4

5
2

,0
1

9
4

5
9

,7
0

4
4

6
7

,5
1

8
4

7
5

,4
6

6

In
te

re
st

2
1

9
,6

4
3

2
1

3
,9

6
9

2
0

8
,2

0
0

2
0

2
,3

3
2

1
9

6
,3

6
5

1
9

0
,2

9
6

1
8

4
,1

2
4

1
7

7
,8

4
6

1
7

1
,4

6
3

1
6

4
,9

7
0

1
5

8
,3

6
8

1
5

1
,6

5
3

1
4

4
,8

2
4

1
3

7
,8

7
9

1
3

0
,8

1
6

1
2

3
,6

3
2

1
1

6
,3

2
7

1
0

8
,8

9
7

1
0

1
,3

4
2

9
3

,6
5

7
8

5
,8

4
2

7
7

,8
9

4

T
o

ta
l

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

%
 a

llo
c

Fu
n

d
 1

1
-1

0
0

%
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1
5

5
3

,3
6

1

Fu
n

d
 1

2
-0

%
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

5
5

3
,3

6
1

Page 40 of 58



T
a

b
le

 A
-2

P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 D
e

b
t 

Se
rv

ic
e

 S
ch

e
d

u
le

P
a

ym
e

n
ts

D
e

b
t 

R
e

se
rv

e

C
IP

Is
su

a
n

ce
In

te
re

st
N

u
m

b
e

r
A

n
n

u
a

l
T

o
ta

l
C

u
m

u
la

ti
ve

In
te

re
st

E
sc

a
la

te
d

A
m

o
u

n
t

R
a

te
o

f 
Y

e
a

rs
P

a
ym

e
n

ts
P

a
ym

e
n

ts
A

n
n

u
a

l
R

a
te

SR
F 

Lo
a

n
 (

$
 T

h
o

u
sa

n
d

s)

St
a

te
 M

a
xi

m
u

m
 L

o
a

n
$

5
9

,3
5

6

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

$
0

P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
a

ra
m

e
te

rs
$

5
9

,3
5

6
$

5
9

,3
5

6
2

.0
0

0
%

3
0

$
2

,6
5

0
1

.0
0

%

C
a

sh
 F

lo
w

 (
$

 T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s)

FY
1

9
FY

2
0

FY
2

1
FY

2
2

FY
2

3
FY

2
4

FY
2

5
FY

2
6

FY
2

7
FY

2
8

FY
2

9
FY

3
0

FY
3

1
FY

3
2

FY
3

3

C
a

p
it

a
l C

o
st

s
$

5
,0

5
7

$
2

7
,1

4
9

$
2

7
,1

4
9

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Fu
n

d
e

d
 b

y 
SR

F
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%

D
o

lla
rs

 F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y 

SR
F

$
5

,0
5

7
$

2
7

,1
4

9
$

2
7

,1
4

9

A
n

n
u

a
l D

is
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
$

5
,0

5
7

$
2

7
,1

4
9

$
2

7
,1

4
9

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 D

is
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
$

5
,0

5
7

$
3

2
,2

0
6

$
5

9
,3

5
6

In
te

re
st

 r
a

te
2

.0
0

0
%

2
.0

0
0

%
2

.0
0

0
%

In
te

re
st

 O
n

ly
 P

a
ym

e
n

ts
$

1
0

1
$

6
4

4
$

1
,1

8
7

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l &
 I

n
te

re
st

 P
a

ym
e

n
t 

Y
e

a
r 

N
u

m
b

e
r

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l &
 I

n
te

re
st

 P
a

ym
e

n
ts

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0

D
e

b
t 

re
se

rv
e

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n

A
n

n
u

a
l A

cc
u

m
u

la
ti

o
n

 %
0

%
0

%
0

%
0

%
0

%
0

%
0

%
0

%
0

%
0

%

A
n

n
u

a
l A

cc
u

m
u

la
ti

o
n

 $
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 A

cc
u

m
u

la
ti

o
n

 $
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0

D
e

b
t 

re
se

rv
e

 in
te

re
st

 r
a

te
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%

D
e

b
t 

re
se

rv
e

 in
te

re
st

 e
a

rn
in

g
s

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

Su
m

m
a

ry
 (

$
5

9
,3

5
6

)

In
te

re
st

 O
n

ly
 P

a
ym

e
n

ts
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l P
a

ym
e

n
t

$
1

,4
6

3
$

1
,4

9
2

$
1

,5
2

2
$

1
,5

5
3

$
1

,5
8

4
$

1
,6

1
5

$
1

,6
4

8
$

1
,6

8
1

$
1

,7
1

4
$

1
,7

4
9

$
1

,7
8

4

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l P
o

rt
io

n
 O

u
st

a
n

d
in

g
$

5
9

,3
5

6
$

5
7

,8
9

3
$

5
6

,4
0

0
$

5
4

,8
7

8
$

5
3

,3
2

5
$

5
1

,7
4

2
$

5
0

,1
2

6
$

4
8

,4
7

8
$

4
6

,7
9

8
$

4
5

,0
8

4
$

4
3

,3
3

5
$

4
1

,5
5

1

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l &
 I

n
te

re
st

 P
a

ym
e

n
ts

$
1

0
1

$
6

4
4

$
1

,1
8

7
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

R
e

se
rv

e
 F

u
n

d
 A

cc
u

m
u

la
ti

o
n

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

Le
ss

: 
R

e
se

rv
e

 F
u

n
d

 I
n

te
re

st
 E

a
rn

in
g

s 
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0

Le
ss

: 
R

e
se

rv
e

 F
u

n
d

 A
cc

u
m

u
la

ti
o

n
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0

SR
F 

Lo
a

n
 T

o
ta

ls
$

1
0

1
$

6
4

4
$

1
,1

8
7

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0
$

2
,6

5
0

$
2

,6
5

0

Page 41 of 58



T
a

b
le

 A
-2

P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 D
e

b
t 

Se
rv

ic
e

 S
ch

e
d

u
le

P
a

ym
e

n
ts

D
e

b
t 

R
e

se
rv

e

C
IP

Is
su

a
n

ce
In

te
re

st
N

u
m

b
e

r
A

n
n

u
a

l
T

o
ta

l
C

u
m

u
la

ti
ve

In
te

re
st

E
sc

a
la

te
d

A
m

o
u

n
t

R
a

te
o

f 
Y

e
a

rs
P

a
ym

e
n

ts
P

a
ym

e
n

ts
A

n
n

u
a

l
R

a
te

SR
F 

Lo
a

n
 (

$
 T

h
o

u
sa

n
d

s)

St
a

te
 M

a
xi

m
u

m
 L

o
a

n
$

3
3

,0
8

6

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

$
0

P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
a

ra
m

e
te

rs
$

3
3

,0
8

6
$

3
3

,0
8

6
2

.0
0

0
%

3
0

$
1

,4
7

7
1

.0
0

%

C
a

sh
 F

lo
w

 (
$

 T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s)

FY
1

9
FY

2
0

FY
2

1
FY

2
2

FY
2

3
FY

2
4

FY
2

5
FY

2
6

FY
2

7
FY

2
8

FY
2

9
FY

3
0

FY
3

1
FY

3
2

FY
3

3

C
a

p
it

a
l C

o
st

s
$

3
,8

1
7

$
1

4
,4

1
8

$
1

4
,8

5
1

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Fu
n

d
e

d
 b

y 
SR

F
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%

D
o

lla
rs

 F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y 

SR
F

$
3

,8
1

7
$

1
4

,4
1

8
$

1
4

,8
5

1

A
n

n
u

a
l D

is
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
$

3
,8

1
7

$
1

4
,4

1
8

$
1

4
,8

5
1

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 D

is
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
$

3
,8

1
7

$
1

8
,2

3
5

$
3

3
,0

8
6

In
te

re
st

 r
a

te
2

.0
0

0
%

2
.0

0
0

%
2

.0
0

0
%

In
te

re
st

 O
n

ly
 P

a
ym

e
n

ts
$

7
6

$
3

6
5

$
6

6
2

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l &
 I

n
te

re
st

 P
a

ym
e

n
t 

Y
e

a
r 

N
u

m
b

e
r

1
2

3
4

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l &
 I

n
te

re
st

 P
a

ym
e

n
ts

$
1

,4
7

7
$

1
,4

7
7

$
1

,4
7

7
$

1
,4

7
7

D
e

b
t 

re
se

rv
e

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n

A
n

n
u

a
l A

cc
u

m
u

la
ti

o
n

 %
0

%
0

%
0

%
0

%

A
n

n
u

a
l A

cc
u

m
u

la
ti

o
n

 $
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 A

cc
u

m
u

la
ti

o
n

 $
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0

D
e

b
t 

re
se

rv
e

 in
te

re
st

 r
a

te
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%
1

.0
0

%

D
e

b
t 

re
se

rv
e

 in
te

re
st

 e
a

rn
in

g
s

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

Su
m

m
a

ry
 (

$
3

3
,0

8
6

)

In
te

re
st

 O
n

ly
 P

a
ym

e
n

ts
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l P
a

ym
e

n
t

$
8

1
6

$
8

3
2

$
8

4
9

$
8

6
5

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l P
o

rt
io

n
 O

u
st

a
n

d
in

g
$

3
3

,0
8

6
$

3
2

,2
7

1
$

3
1

,4
3

9
$

3
0

,5
9

0
$

2
9

,7
2

5

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l &
 I

n
te

re
st

 P
a

ym
e

n
ts

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
7

6
$

3
6

5
$

6
6

2
$

1
,4

7
7

$
1

,4
7

7
$

1
,4

7
7

$
1

,4
7

7

R
e

se
rv

e
 F

u
n

d
 A

cc
u

m
u

la
ti

o
n

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

Le
ss

: 
R

e
se

rv
e

 F
u

n
d

 I
n

te
re

st
 E

a
rn

in
g

s 
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0

Le
ss

: 
R

e
se

rv
e

 F
u

n
d

 A
cc

u
m

u
la

ti
o

n
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0

SR
F 

Lo
a

n
 T

o
ta

ls
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

7
6

$
3

6
5

$
6

6
2

$
1

,4
7

7
$

1
,4

7
7

$
1

,4
7

7
$

1
,4

7
7

Page 42 of 58



Table A-3

Fund 11 O&M Expenditures

Adopted Prelim

All Expenditures, $thousands Budget Budget Projected

Expenditure Category FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Engineering & Maintenance

Salaries & Benefits 1,782 1,836 1,891 1,948 2,006 2,066 2,128 2,192 2,258 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Services & Supplies [1] 886 912 939 967 996 1,026 1,057 1,089 1,122 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Chemicals & Electricity 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Depreciation 605 623 642 661 681 701 722 744 766 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Total Collection 3,277 3,375 3,476 3,580 3,687 3,797 3,911 4,029 4,150

Operations

Salaries & Benefits 1,085 1,117 1,151 1,186 1,222 1,259 1,297 1,336 1,376 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Services & Supplies [1] 587 605 623 642 661 681 701 722 744 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Chemicals & Electricity 871 915 961 1,009 1,059 1,112 1,168 1,226 1,287 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%

Depreciation 1,900 1,957 2,016 2,076 2,138 2,202 2,268 2,336 2,406 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Total Operations 4,443 4,594 4,751 4,913 5,080 5,254 5,434 5,620 5,813

Administration/Board

Salaries & Benefits 755 778 801 825 850 876 902 929 957 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Services & Supplies [1] 1,054 1,086 1,119 1,153 1,188 1,224 1,261 1,299 1,338 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Chemicals & Electricity 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Depreciation 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Total Administration 1,812 1,867 1,923 1,981 2,041 2,103 2,166 2,231 2,298

Combined

Salaries & Benefits 3,622 3,731 3,843 3,959 4,078 4,201 4,327 4,457 4,591 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 9% 3% 3%

Services & Supplies [1] 2,527 2,603 2,681 2,762 2,845 2,931 3,019 3,110 3,204 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 9% 3% 3%

Chemicals & Electricity 875 919 965 1,013 1,063 1,116 1,172 1,230 1,291 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 16% 5% 5%

Depreciation 2,508 2,583 2,661 2,740 2,822 2,906 2,993 3,083 3,175 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 9% 3% 3%

Total Combined 9,532 9,836 10,150 10,474 10,808 11,154 11,511 11,880 12,261

Reserve [2] 3,973 4,099 4,230 4,364 4,503 4,647 4,795 4,949 5,107

Totals 13,505 13,935 14,380 14,838 15,311 15,801 16,306 16,829 17,368

Annual Dollar Change 430 445 458 473 490 505 523 539

Annual Percent Change 3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2%

Notes:

1 The District's budget includes Chemicals and Electricity in the Services & Supplies category.

Expenditure projections in this model list Chemicals and Electricity in a separate category.

Depreciation is excluded

2 The reserve amount is calculated as shown below:

Expense Category FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

O&M 9,532 9,836 10,150 10,474 10,808 11,154 11,511 11,880 12,261

Fund 11 Capital

E&M - Facilities 340 350 361 372 383 394 406 418 431 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Operations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

General Facilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Admin 60 62 64 66 68 70 72 74 76 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Total Fund 11 Capital 400 412 424 437 450 464 478 492 507

Total Expense Base 9,932 10,248 10,574 10,911 11,258 11,618 11,989 12,372 12,768

% of Base to Reserve 40% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40%

Reserve Contribution 3,973 4,099 4,230 4,364 4,503 4,647 4,795 4,949 5,107

Sources:

Adopted Budget: Operation and Maintenance Budget and Capital Improvement Program, Fiscal Year 2018/2019.

Preliminary Budget: Draft Operation and Maintenance Budget and Capital Improvement Program, Fiscal Year 2019/2020.

Page 43 of 58



Table A-4

Fund 11 Revenue Projections

Adopted Prelim

All Revenues, $thousands Budget Budget Projected

Expenditure Category FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Operating Revenues

Sewer Service 11,005 11,691 11,776 12,583 12,648 12,733 14,306 16,056 18,028 varies

Penalties 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Permit/Inspection Fees 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 12 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Plan Check Fees 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 12 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Other Services 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Total Operating 11,028 11,714 11,799 12,607 12,673 12,758 14,331 16,081 18,054

Nonoperating Revenues

Interest revenue 140 143 146 149 152 155 158 161 164 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Taxes-current secured 700 714 728 743 758 773 789 804 820 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Taxes-current unsecured 21 22 22 23 24 24 25 26 27 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Taxes-prior secured 6.0 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.8 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Taxes-prior unsecured 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Taxes-penalties 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5

Taxes-supplemental current 7.0 7.2 7.4 7.6 7.8 8.0 8.2 8.4 8.7 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Taxes-supplemental prior 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.6 3.7 3.8 3.9 4.0 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Homeowner's Tax Relief 6.0 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.8 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Non-operating income 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Total Nonoperating 885 903 921 940 959 979 998 1,019 1,039

Totals 11,913 12,617 12,721 13,547 13,632 13,736 15,330 17,100 19,094 6% 1% 6% 1% 1% 12% 12% 12%

Annual Dollar Change 704 104 827 84 105 1,593 1,770 1,994

Annual Percent Change 5.9% 0.8% 6.5% 0.6% 0.8% 11.6% 11.5% 11.7%

Sources:

Adopted Budget: Operation and Maintenance Budget and Capital Improvement Program, Fiscal Year 2018/2019.

Preliminary Budget: Draft Operation and Maintenance Budget and Capital Improvement Program, Fiscal Year 2019/2020.

Page 44 of 58



Table A-5

Debt Service Coverage

All Dollars in $thousands Budget Projected

Item FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Income

Sewer Service 11,005 11,691 11,776 12,583 12,648 12,733 14,306 16,056 18,028

Other Operating 23 23 24 24 24 25 25 26 26

Nonoperating 745 760 776 792 808 824 841 858 875

Interest 140 307 307 303 305 302 295 215 153

Connection Fees 896 880 1,150 1,200 1,250 1,300 1,340 1,380 1,423

Total Income 12,809 13,661 14,032 14,901 15,035 15,184 16,807 18,534 20,506

Operating Expenses 7,024 7,253 7,489 7,734 7,986 8,248 8,518 8,797 9,086

Net Income 5,784 6,408 6,543 7,167 7,049 6,936 8,289 9,737 11,420

Debt Service Principal & Interest

Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 890 889 892 887 887 886 888 887 0

Clean Water State Revolving Fund

Project No. C-06-8116-110
553 553 553 553 553 553 553 553 553

2023 SRF Low Interest Loan 0 101 644 1,187 2,650 2,650 2,650 2,650 2,650

Total 1,444 1,544 2,089 2,628 4,090 4,089 4,091 4,091 3,204

Coverage Ratio 4.01x 4.15x 3.13x 2.73x 1.72x 1.70x 2.03x 2.38x 3.56x

Amount Over / (Under) 1.5x Coverage

Page 45 of 58



  
Valley Sanitary District 

Board of Directors Meeting 
March 4, 2020 

 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 
 
FROM: Joanne Padgham, Administration & Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Pollution Liability Coverage – Desert Cornerstone Insurance 

Service, Inc. 
  

☒Board Action ☐New Budget Approval ☐Contract Award 

☐Board Information ☒Existing FY Approved Budget ☐Closed Session 

 
Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is for the Board to review and approve the Environmental 
Pollution Liability coverage for the annual fee of $13,143. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
The expenditure is in the approved FY 2019/2020 budget. 
 
The 12-month coverage period is from March 1, 2020 – March 1, 2021. 
 
Background 
Hugh Curtis from Desert Cornerstone Insurance Service, Inc. introduced the Pollution 
Liability coverage at the April 9, 2019 meeting and the Board approved the coverage for 
the 2018/2019 fiscal year. 
 
Paul Fuller, the expert on this coverage, will give a presentation to the Board about this 
coverage and answer any questions the Board may have at the April 14, 2020 regular 
board meeting. 
 
Recommendation 
To approve the payment of $13,143 to Desert Cornerstone Insurance Service, Inc. 
 
Attachments 
Attachment A: Environmental Pollution Proposal 
  

Page 46 of 58



z_
-5

2
.2

z_
_

__
_

<
<

>
m

w
_.

>
__

Q
m

__
<

_:
E

m
_m

=
£_

_<
_>

m
<

Z
02

m
._

.>
_:

_u
O

_u
rC

._
.

O
v_

»o
_u

om
>

r

O
m

qm
w

om
m

m
._

.m
>

0.
_.

<
._

.
m

m
qa

ro
m

m
o

10
.»

._
. W
-

m
._

.m
_u

m
z.

_.
._

.
m

m

5.
3

w
oé

m
?

E
m

:
m

an
__

._
2.

_B
:n

m
_<

_m
:m

m
o3

m
3 >

c.
3o

:£

O
2m

_.
m

a
3:

O
m

__
<

_:
E

m
_w

,_
_u

m
__

<
_>

_u
c_

_<_»
m

_:
m

E
.w

a
c<

zm
<

_o
m

8a
m

um
o.

m
=

<
_:

m
Sm

:o
m

O
o3

vm
:<

>
a3

_:
_m

.=
m

8n
>

__
_m

a _u
§_

.o
E

m
?

_.
_.

O

Q
3

>
__

_m
a 00

33
53

2
_:

m
E

m
:o

m
w

m
2_

ow
m

__.
_.

O

om
_=

o3
_m

E
oo

sm
m

uo_
.S

~8

zm
:o

:m
_

_u
a9

_o
2

2:
33

:
38

8%
s2

<
<

<
.m

__
.m

au
cc

__
o:

m
x.

oo
3

s2
<

<
<

.<
<

m
..m

::m
E

m
:o

m
m

:3
oq

:<
.8

3

Page 47 of 58



m
_<

_:
c_

zc
._

m
m

"
>

_m
E

m
.=

um
__

s>
_<

_m
:&

m
q>

n

Page 48 of 58



?m
uZ

_c
_.

__

=
.x

__
<

_>

Page 49 of 58



E
gg

s.

:u
x_

_s
>

Page 50 of 58



m
_<

_:
.E
_

.1
2

:..
..§

2.
..

.._
..

m
m

m
.a

:m
_ nE

o=
.:m

3m
<

cm
ax

?
8

nm
m

zs
m

?q
sm

gm
n

>
wm

an
:

._
.:m
... _ux__s> m

_.
.<

_8
_.

_3
m

:?
_

co
__

::o
: S

en
na

S3
33

om
:m

ns
m

qs
m

m
:<

_3
:3

m
:.m

_
o_

_:
ao

=

:u
_~

__
<

_>

Page 51 of 58



_<
_:

_ _

m
:<

=
o:

3m
3m

_
o=

.E
.o

:
89

.9
88

o.
m

_:
m

E
m

am
m

m
_:

m
.m

:n
E

m
m

m
m

m
anx

.m
:a

m
no

<
m

E
¢

16
m

m_
o:

n
m

mS
m

co
__

S_
o:

_.
._

na
m

3
o.

.E
=

._
m

.m
n_

2.
03

m
m

_,
=

n_
nm

3o
o<

m
Sn

m
<

§m
$

m
_.

m
.m

m
m

m
2

m
uo

__
S.

o:
im

am
:

_m
62

:8
E

am
_.

:._
_m

no
sw

m
nmm

nz
m

an
m

ao
an

=
._

m
3m

_m

53
:8

9.
m

oo
_.

_?
5m

32
._

.:3
#.

U
Q

aw
n <

<
m

m
.mQ2

3
8

ca
m

:
_:

m
:_

.m
n m

.u
m

:o
:._

:m
_.

nm
a_

m o
o<

m
.m

n

._
._

..m ,
_E

..=
§>

m
:<

__
,o

:3
m

:n
w

_b
o=

_.
.:o

=
u_

.o
a:

o.
:m

_u
m u

E
»m

n.
m

om
_:

m
.

m
co

s

0m
:3

:._
.m

.E
m

~m
m

m
m

«m
m

n:
<

m
_:

m
m

m
as:m

.E
m

_
am

m
oc

am
m

um
sm

m
m

m
m

m
w

m
am

zm
m

_.
._

m
Z

m
m

0
E

5

_<
_>

m
z<

_w
oz

_s
m

z«
>

r
_u

O
_u

_.
C

._
._

O
Z

_u
zo

_u
om

>
_.

oz
m

?m
m

o_
u_

um
_.

_.
m >o

:<
:_

m
m

4>
__

.o
_~

m
o

10
.»

<
<

>
._

.m
_»

-_
»m

_u
>

._
.m

_u
m

zd
dm

m
32

8
3:

O
m

__
<

_:
F_

m
_m

.:u
m

__
<

_>

_,
,=

a_
=

..h
_.

:w
um

w
=

aw
.n

w
a_

__
;o

3
_u

c_
_<_»

m
_:

m
:8

q
c<

zm
<

5m
.o

amw
um

o.
m

:<
_:

m
E

m
:

om
O

o
3U

m
: <

O
_~

>
U

C
>

_.
m

m
_.

m
>

m
m

>
20

m
m

m
_u

>
m

m
O

_u
_u

O
_.

_.
C

._
._

O
2

_z
o_

_u
m

z4
m

_u
_»

O
_<

_
>

2
_z

m
c_

»m
o

m
_.

_.
m .

_.
.._

>
._

.

oO
z.

_.
>

_<
__

z>
._

.m
w

>
2

>
oc

__
um

_~
u

®
m

:m
qm

_
__

m
E

_=
<m
ag

u8
um

_.
€

_u
o_

_o
_m

m
oo

33
o:

_<
m

xo
__

.a
m 2

3*
2

:._
a-

um
:<

o_
m

m
:E

o n
ow

.»
«c

a
m

_.
.<m

_.
m

qc
m

_
m

m
om

vm3
uo

__
::o

: S
oa

m
am

Sm
"

oo
oc

ao
:

m
s

Sm
?m

a
w

zm
. :6

.:u
_»

_<
_>

E
_o

om
ao

:.
zo

:o
=

.3
_:

m
_

o_
<

__ 2
3m

m
m

um
:m

_:
m

m
_

:m
E

_m

E
m

oc
am

m
am

w
am

m
m

.
o_

m
m

:c
uoo

m
.m

_ co
g:

_2
.c

2.
m

an
u8

_o
m

:<
am

3m
cm

B
m

ca
so

=
03

w
co

:o
_m

_3
m

m
am

oo
3m

3u
_m

6a
5.

5.
:

E
m
._ _u

_»
__

<
_>

m
:<

:o
:3

o:
.m

_
uo

__
:¢

o:
v_

.o
ac

Q
.

o_
.m

>
zc

_u
oo

m
qm

>
20

._
._

._
=

»U
-_

u>
_~

._
.<

_u
_~

o_
um

_?
.<

_u
>

_s
>

m
m

._z
o_

.c
o_

zo
z>

._
.c

_»
>

_.
m

m
m

oc
xo

m
m

o>
_s

>
om

.
_z

oc
xm

m
o

«n
o:

>
<

<
>

m
._

.m
<

<
>

._
.m

m _
»m

_.
m

>
m

m
_u

_.
.6

_s
m

m
im

w
_s

>
_z

m
_»

m
>

z
O

.»
._

.>
zx

m
m

_.
m

>
m

m
oz

>
2

_z
m

cm
m

u
w

_.
_.

m
”

w
m

ém
q

3m
_:

c?
m

m
xwm

am
oo

2m
3u

_m
.m

a:
:a

m
8m

:m
B

_
__

w
c_

_:
<uo
__

o.
m

m
3a

.3
3

vm
:<c

8_
__

< .2
52

m
ag

ua
um

nv
.

am
am

m
m

.
..

_.
:_

m m
om

am
ao

om
?m3

08
oo

3c
__

om
.m

a:
Sm

6_
m

m
m

m
co

m
m38

m
m

.8
_.

3
E

m
nm

?Q
8.

:
oq

m
&

m
om

3<<
m

62
<

m
<

.
_u

__
u.

:o
_:

..B
w

=
:o

E
8

_m
m

c8
3m

=
om

__
<Q

m
am

a
m

mm
s.

35
8

£6
0:

.:u
_»

__
<

_>
_w

m
:<

_6
:3

m
:$

_
uo

__
c¢

o:
E

09
5.

_»
m

_m
m

m
m

m
2o

3
20

88
$2

8
0:

m
s

.3
28

33
m

am
m

_m
o o

o2
m

3v
_m

.6
a

5
E

m
_u

3m
qm

3.
zo

:o
_.

_3
.:m

_
o_

<
__

.._
:m

m m
vm

sm
am

w
.

:m
.:.

=
u

am
oc

am
w

qm
3m

om
_o

_m
m

:c
uoo

m
.m

_ Ea
um

:<c
og

:
ic

on
m

ag
33

um
:< v

8v
m

:<
am

3m
m

mE
m

ca
zo

20
3

m
en

:
o_

m
_3

m
m

am
oo

:.m
3u

_m
.8

a
5

Sm
%

m
__

<
_>

m
:<

_8
:3

m
:$

_
uo

__
E

.o
: E

oa
co

n

__
._

.m
m

>
r

U
C

_<
=

u_
Z

Q
O

W
>

w
>

zo
oz

_s
m

z4
>

._
. >

Z
<

_z
m

c_
»m

u
m

?m
O

_u
ux

cz
zm

.
O

W
oo

z4
>

_z
m

_»
.m

.
O

."

m
cw

m
dr

zo
m

m
ox

o_
._

m
z_

_o
>

_.
m _

»m
m

c_
.>

4m
o

>
w

_.
_>

N
>

_»
uo

cm
O

.»
49

20
cz

om
x_

um
om

z>
r.m

._
.>

.q
m

.
O

.»
_.

oo
>

_.
m

z<
_x

oz
_s

m
z§

_.
_.

>
<

<
._

~m
m

c_
.>

:o
z.

O
N

m
._

.>
._

.c
._

.m
_ Q

m
m

zc
vo

ow
nwm

an
am

3o
<

m
_

ox
um

sm
m

m
2

zm
nm

ao
cm3m

8:
m

_m
m

8
oo

33
o:

_<
m

xo
_c

n_
m

a Ea
m

q
m

m
:o

E
__

_m
c_

_:
<

m
ag

v8
um

:<
vo

__
o_

om
.

c:
_=

6
38

.
9.

50
:

.._
.:m

,_
E

»_
_<

_>
m

_.
_<

_a
:3

m
2m

_
uo

__
:_

..o
:

go
nz

o»
oo

<
m

_m
E

m
83

o<
m

m
ag

o_
om

::v
co

m
a m

am
im2

03
._

_m
om

.
n_

c3
_u

.:m
2

zm
m

m
ao

cm3m
§.

_m
_m

m
. m

:.
35

8
m

zo E
m

:o
:-

_:
m

E
m

a.

_z
>

_u
<

m
_?

m
z.

.
o_

m
4c

m
w

>
zo

m
O

_u
_.

m
>

u
m

>
m

m
_u

3:
24

0.
»

>
m

m
m

m
4o

m
oo

za
>

_z
_z

o
_s

>
._

.m
_~

_>
_.

.

_z
n_

.c
o_

zo
du

>
zw

_.
_.

m
_u

__
u_

zm >
._

. >
z<

_z
m

cm
m

_u
m

:._
w

Q
m

m
zc

uoo
m

nmm
za

.:_
a-

um
:<

__
m

c_
_=

<
m

:m
_B

20
3

_:
m

q<
m

:m
2

q_
m

E
6m

:o
m

oq
_m

m
a-

cm
m

m
a

um
io

qm
m

cm
m

no
mo

o_
.:m

_:
_:

m
3m

6:
m

_w
_

_:
o_

:a
.:m

9:
:2

__
3_

aa
8

=
38

_u
__

u_
:m

_
om

w
_6

.a
_m

an
_:

m
c_

m
:o

:_ m8
oo

33
o:

_<
on

m
a

Sw
cz

w
a

9.
8.

._
.:_

m m
xc

om
c?

m_
m E

m
c_

m
:<m

xo
za

m
acz
a?

m
m

:m
«m

__
.m

c_
_:

< m
an

90
83

.
uo

=
o_

m
m

.
_:

m
a<

m
:m

3
a_

m
E

&
m

:o
m

m
on

m
a S

m
ca

a
m

zm
.

>
oo

__
um

z.
_.

>
_.

xm
_.

m
>

m
m

O
.”

>
m

_s
>

:.
oo

z4
>

_z
m

_~
on

_.
cm

m
O

F
._

._
._

>
._

. ov
m

zm
.2

40
>

<
<

>
.q

m
_~

<
<

>
<

_

._
._

.._
m m

om
sm

ao_m
2.

8
:9

5
m

xo
_:

qm
a 3

@
96

8.
_m

E
=

.Qm
an

u8
vm

_.
.<

_u
o_

_o
_m

m
.

m
m=

_:
<

o_
<

m
m

:m
E

B
_

E
m

oc
am

m

qm
3m

m
m

<
m

ac
m

E
a

vm
:< u

8v
o:

<
am

3m
um

.m
co

:m
m

m
m

m
m

w
am

am
m

am
_m

<
_¢

a
_u

<qc
m

nm
m

m 20
3

:6
c=

_§
_

m
?n

m
m

U
m

um
na

m
a9.

.2
81

9.
._

.:m
m

m .
nE

m
._

m
m

m
oo

au
zm

mau
am

w
m

am
zo

z
20

3
E

m
U

m
um

na
oa

m3
>

m
:o

:_
E

a_

O
o

:m
m

2m
:o

:_
_u

m
$:

m
m

_
m

:m
6<

.m
ag

_:
.m

_.
_o

a 20
8

5:
:

m
oo

<
m

3o
?m

E
uo

_:
6n

_n
am

nm
m

..o
q m

?m
?mq

m
m

oc
am

m
m

a m
.:_

cm
_ ic

w
nm

m:
03

m
m

o: Ec
m

_3
um

o.
m

a 3
5m

m
zm

oo
a

uo
__

S_
o:

m
u_

__
.

O
sm

m
co

: uo
__

S_
o:

Se
am

an
_:

<
o_

<
oq

m
m

m
.<

m
:

om
__

o:oo
s?

sm
q

2
E

va
o.

_
32

5m
m

E
03

33
o_

m
m

:o
a-

c_
u

m
zm

a 8_
m

m
m

.:m
3.

8
m

<
<

m
.m

2<
m

<
.

>
<

8:
56

:
m

s
m

m
m

m
m

m
3m

2 *2
m

m
<

m
B

_
3_

__
_o

:
ao

__
m

.m E
m

m
_m

<
_m

a m
m

m
iw

?
=

6
m

:E
<.

.o
q S

m
m

u_
__

.w
.3

89
0:

:3
8

m
an

m
nc

m
co

E
m

oc
w

om
m

.

m
m

am
m

.
._

.:m
.:u

_»
__

<
_>

o:
<

:o
:3

m
:$

_
vo

__
::o

: 2
8:

2
_:

o_
ca

m
m U

S$
02

0:
m

cm
im

.am
?m

sm
m6_

m
$a

co
m

a m
m<

<
m

._

m
mm

m
:_

m
3m

3
9.

:o
:o

:3
.:m

_
m

zm
mm
m

m
m

m
m

m
a.

di
m

c8
oo

m
m

:m
on

:w
33

__
_c

m
:m

:o
: 3

oc
lz

oq
cg

m
ag

33
oo

im
i

::.
2m

::o
:m

__
:m

oo
:$

Q
m

m
_

o:
8_

m
.m

a_
3m

_m
:.m

_.
o1

oo
<

oB
cm

w
:o

::o
_:

am
a_

:
oE

o:
o_

m
:o

:m
<

0:
3c

m
.

E
31

0
E

m
m

oE
m

_
_<

_m
3o

.m
:Q

c3
oq

O
o<

m
ao

m
A

_<
_O

O
Z

o$
Q

m
m

on
nz

ozo
3o

<
m

_.
m

m
m

m
.m
xn

_c
w

_o
:w

.
m

ag
oo

sa
ao

sm
>

a3
_3

m
:m

.o
n

>
_.

m
a

U
cc

zo
m

ax
._

L
.O

. O
>

ow
?

>
__

_m
a
O

o3
3:

:=
<

Sm
ca

so
m

w
m

2_
om

w
.

F0
. m

i
w

oe
»:

<
<

m
ox

m
«

D
=

.<
m

_
m

sa
88

. O
:_

om
m

o_
F

88
9

O
>

C
om

sm
m

zo
or

o?
m

w
. zm

:o
:m

_
P0

95
22

0
33

8%
.s

>
<

<
<

m
__

_m
ac

cc
__

n:
.m

x
83

C
m

::m
2I

m
o$

V

Page 52 of 58



m
=

<
_

:_ _

_m
m

_m
_m

:
no

au
m

?

Sa
na

vm
az

m
m

::u
m

:§
.::

m
m

io
m

w8
m

=
.<b:

E
..n

5
N

ew
in

33
E

.<
m

.2
m

_.
o

H t
o

m
a m

as
w

oé

m
m

no
a

m
um

m
..3

m
ou

m
?

m
.m

an:
5:

..o
:3

m
:.m

_

E
m

§.
3

n
E

m
§.

m
.<

m
$3

m
O

m
=

._
.o

=
=

.m
m

Sm
zm

m
m

mE

m
=

.o
.. 2

5
m

__
_.

._
o.

=
=

o

m
o

m
ac

:
m

oo
?g

a.

uc
ao

m
nm

n:
.:n

m
_ n

m
x3

9$
zz

am
zs

Page 53 of 58



 

Valley Sanitary District 

Board of Directors Meeting 

March 4, 2020 

 

  
  

TO: Board of Directors 
 
THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 
 
FROM: Ronald Buchwald, District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Award Contract – Owner’s Representative to VSD for the Influent 

Pump Station Rehabilitation to Stantec, Inc. 
 

☒ Board Action ☐ New expenditure request ☒ Contract Award 

☐ Board Information ☒ Existing FY Approved Budget ☐ Closed Session 

 

Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is for the Board of Directors to review the contract 
amendment proposal. 
   
Fiscal Impact 
This proposal for $15,372 will be added by amendment to the original contract. The 
revised total contract amount is $402,503.  This is a multi-year project. 
   
Background 
On December 10, 2019, the Board authorized the General Manager to enter into a 
contract with Stantec, Inc. (Stantec) for a not to exceed price of $387,131 to become the 
Owner’s Representative of VSD to oversee the selection of the design build team and 
provide engineering support for the Influent Pump Station Rehabilitation Project.  
Stantec’s scope of work included preparing a Request for Proposal (RFP) to solicit 
design-build teams and provide proposals to perform the work.   
 
Working with VSD’s legal counsel on similar projects, BB & K provided a legal template 
to guide special districts through the design-build process and adhere to state laws.  
One state law requirement of the design-build method is a two-step process for 
soliciting design-build teams.  The first step is to qualify design-build teams through a 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) document.  Then, after several design-build teams 
have been qualified, the second step is to solicit cost proposals through the RFP 
process.  The first step (preparing an RFQ) was not included in Stantec’s scope of work.  
Stantec provided this amendment proposal to include the cost of preparing the RFQ.  
The letter of proposal is attached for further review. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to 
execute a contract amendment to Stantec, Inc. to prepare and evaluate an RFQ as 
required by State law as part of the Influent Pump Station Rehabilitation Project.  
 

 

Page 54 of 58



Attachments 
Attachment A: Letter of Proposal, Stantec, dated February 20, 2020 
 

                      

  

Page 55 of 58



 

  

  Amendment Letter 

  
  

 

20 February 2020 

Ron Buchwald, PE 

District Engineer 
Valley Sanitary District 
45500 Van Buren Street   
Indio, California, 92201 

Subject: Amendment to Task Authorization 19-03 - Influent Pump Station Rehabilitation  

Dear Mr. Buchwald, 

In your February 4, 2020 email was an outstanding summary from your corporate counsel (BB&K) research 
regarding use of design-build for Special Districts.  After consulting our corporate counsel and interpretation 
of the State of California statute specifically enabling Design Build procurement, the outcome was: this and 
other statues do not appear to support a shortened one-step procurement for the Influent Pump Station 
Rehabilitation project. The safest route would be to adhere to the two-step process, consisting of 1) RFQ to 
prequalify design build teams for a short list followed by 2) RFP to solicit proposals. This is consistent with 
your corporate counsel advice.  Based on this we propose to add two tasks as an amendment to Task 
Authorization 19-03, which are: 

• Task A.1.2: Preparation of RFP 
• Task A.2.2: Evaluation of proposal 

 
We believe we can limit the schedule impact to 3 months as shown in the revised project schedule 
attached. We estimate the addition of a full RFP and evaluation of same to the scope will require 70 
additional staff hours at a cost of $15,372. See table below for fee related to Task A.1.2 and Task A.2.2 . 
Detailed labor hours and fee is attached.  
 

Task No Task Budget Fee 

A.1.2 Preparation of RFP $10,248.00 

A.2.2 Evaluation of Proposals $5,124.00 

 TOTAL FEE $15,372 

 
 

Page 56 of 58



Mr. Ron Buchwald, PE 

Page 2 of 3  

Reference: Amendment to Task Authorization 19-03 – Influent Pump Station Rehabilitation 

 
 

 

Authorization  

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal on behalf of the City. If you have any questions, 
please contact Paul Wallace at (626) 568-6076 or Venu Kolli at (626) 568-6073. 

 
  

Paul F. Wallace, PE 
Principal Environmental Engineer 
Phone: (626) 568-6076  
Paul.Wallace@stantec.com 
 

 

Venu Kolli, PE 
Area Manager 
Phone: (626) 568 6073   
Venu.Kolli@stantec.com 

  

Page 57 of 58



Mr. Ron Buchwald, PE 

Page 3 of 3  

Reference: Amendment to Task Authorization 19-03 – Influent Pump Station Rehabilitation 

 
 

 

By signing this proposal, Valley Sanitary District (Client) authorizes Stantec to proceed with the services 
herein described and the Client acknowledges that it has read and agrees to be bound by the attached 
Professional Services Terms and Conditions. 

This proposal is accepted and agreed on the Day day of Month, Year. 

 

Per:     Valley Sanitary District 

   

 

 

Print Name & Title  Signature 

 

Attachment: Project Schedule 

Page 58 of 58


	Agenda
	3.1. 3.1 11 FEB 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes
	3.1. 3.1 26 Feb 2020 Special Meeting Minutes
	4.1. 4.1 Staff Report Prop 218 Public Hearing Date
	4.1. 4.1 Attachment A NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON RATES 2020
	4.2. 4.2 Staff Report Prop 218 Rate Increase and Notice
	4.2. 4.2 Attachment A High Tech Estimate # 35794
	4.2. 4.2 Attachment B Prop 218 Card
	4.2. 4.2 Attachment C vsd_svc_chgs_rpt_final
	4.3. 4.3 Staff Report Pollution Liability Coverage
	4.3. 4.3 Attachment A Environmental Pollution Proposal
	4.4. 4.4 Staff Report Award of Contract - Stantec Owner's Rep Amendment 01
	4.4. 4.4 Attachment A Amendment 1_VSD_IPS_2020_0220

